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MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Refer Note 3)

Notes (Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 924.11 732.62
Capital work-in-progress 3 10.40 226.24
Intangible assets 3 34.06 36.61
Financial assets

i. Other non-current financial assets 5 0.24 0.10
Other non-current assets 6 79.82 77.95

1,048.63 1,073.52
Current assets
Financial assets

i. Trade receivables 4 8.79 54.13
ii. Cash and cash equivalent 7 57.18 12.03
iii. Other bank balances 7A 10.25 4.53
iv. Other financial assets 5 0.21 0.26

Other current assets 6 1.03 0.84
77.46 71.79

TOTAL ASSETS 1,126.09 1,145.31

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 8 281.96 218.18
Other equity

Securities premium 9 11.22 -
Retained earnings 9 (203.12) (124.87)
Other reserves 9 51.00 51.00

Total Equity 141.06 144.31

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i. Borrowings 10 228.35 326.48
ii. Other financial liabilities 13 4.19 4.63

Employee benefit obligations 14 1.77 0.57
Contract Liability 15 157.02 49.28
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16A - -

391.33 380.96
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i. Borrowings 11 36.61 39.77
ii. Trade payables 12 1.74 1.47
iii. Other financial liabilities 13 543.49 559.19

Employee benefit obligations 14 0.42 0.23
Contract Liability 15 11.09 18.19
Other liabilities 16 0.35 1.19

593.70 620.04

Total Liabilities 985.03 1,001.00

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,126.09 1,145.31

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Maharashtra Transmission Communication Infrastructure Limited
Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003

per Paul Alvares Nanda K. Panda Ravindra D. Chavan
Partner Managing Director Chairman
Membership Number: 105754 DIN:07738203 DIN:06537224

Ashok Gandhi Tanu Singh
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2019 Date: May 27, 2019 Date: May 27, 2019



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Refer Note 3)

Notes (Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

INCOME
Revenue from operations 17 45.22 20.52
Other income 18 0.18 1.69
Total income (I) 45.40 22.21

EXPENSES
Purchase of traded goods - 8.27
Employee benefits expense 19 7.30 6.27
Other expenses 23 22.95 3.76
Total expenses (II) 30.25 18.30

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) (I) - (II) 15.15 3.91

Depreciation and amortisation expense 20 65.61 38.24
Finance costs 22 27.53 18.78
Finance income 21 0.81 0.07
Loss before tax (77.18) (53.04)

Tax expense:
Current tax - -
Deferred tax - -
Income tax expense - -

Loss for the year (77.18) (53.04)

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods - -

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans (1.07) 0.94

Other comprehensive income for the year (1.07) 0.94

Total comprehensive income for the year (78.25) (52.10)

Earnings per equity share 24
Basic and diluted
Computed on the basis of loss for the year (Rupee per share) (2.76) (2.48)

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Maharashtra Transmission Communication Infrastructure Limited
Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003

per Paul Alvares Nanda K. Panda Ravindra D. Chavan
Partner Managing Director Chairman
Membership Number : 105754 DIN:07738203 DIN:06537224

Ashok Gandhi Tanu Singh
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2019 Date: May 27, 2019 Date: May 27, 2019



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No. in Millions Rs. in Millions
At 1 April 2017 18.72 187.22
Issue of share capital 3.10 30.97
At 31 March 2018 21.82 218.18
Issue of share capital (Note 8) 6.38 63.78
At 31 March 2019 28.20 281.96

B. OTHER EQUITY (Rs. in Millions)
Capital Contribution
(refer note 3 and 9)

Securities Premium
(refer note 9)

Retained Earnings
(refer note 9)

As at 1 April 2017 51.00 21.72 (72.77)
Loss for the year (restated, refer note 3) - - (53.04)
Other comprehensive income - - 0.94
Total comprehensive income 51.00 21.72 (124.87)

Securities premium utilised for issue of bonus shares - (21.72) -

As at 31 March 2018 (restated, refer note 3) 51.00 - (124.87)

Loss for the year - - (77.18)
Other comprehensive income - - (1.07)
Total comprehensive income - - (78.25)

Securities premium on shares issued during the year - 11.22 -

As at 31 March 2019 51.00 11.22 (203.11)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Maharashtra Transmission Communication Infrastructure Limited
Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003

per Paul Alvares Nanda K. Panda Ravindra D. Chavan
Partner Managing Director Chairman
Membership Number : 105754 DIN:07738203 DIN:06537224

Ashok Gandhi Tanu Singh
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2019 Date: May 27, 2019 Date: May 27, 2019



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Refer Note 3)

(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)
A. Cash flow from Operating Activities

Loss before tax (77.18) (53.04)

Adjustments for:
- Depreciation and amortization expense 65.61 38.24
- Finance income (0.81) (0.07)
- Finance expense 27.53 18.78

92.33 56.95

Operating profit before working capital changes 15.15 3.91
Movements in working capital:

- (Increase) / decrease in trade receivables 45.34 (49.52)
- (Increase) / decrease in other financial assets (0.14) 0.41
- (Increase) / decrease in other assets 14.04 (17.97)
- Increase / (decrease) in net Employee defined benefit liabilities 0.32 (0.02)
- Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 0.27 (2.05)
- Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities 3.23 4.96
- Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities (0.84) 6.18
- Increase / (decrease) in contract liabilities 100.64 51.28

Change in working capital 162.86 (6.73)

Net cash flow from / (used in) operations 178.01 (2.82)
Direct taxes paid (16.10) (0.56)
Net cash used in operating activities 161.91 (3.38)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of plant and equipment (including capital work in progress) (80.10) (143.16)
Short term deposits with bank (5.72) (4.53)
Income from deposits with bank 0.86 0.02

Net cash used in investing activities (84.96) (147.67)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from term loan - 90.72
Repayment of term loan (69.01) -
Issue of 15% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares - 52.24
Net movement short term borrowings from related parties (3.16) 23.37
Proceeds from issues of equity shares including securities premium 75.00 9.24
Finance charges paid (34.63) (15.53)

Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (31.80) 160.04

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 45.15 8.99

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of period 12.03 3.04
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the period 57.18 12.03

 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Balance with banks on current accounts (refer note 7) 57.18 12.03

Cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement 57.18 12.03

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2.2)

As per our report of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Maharashtra Transmission Communication Infrastructure Limited
Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003

per Paul Alvares Nanda K. Panda Ravindra D. Chavan
Partner Managing Director Chairman
Membership Number : 105754 DIN:07738203 DIN:06537224

Ashok Gandhi Tanu Singh
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2019 Date: May 27, 2019 Date: May 27, 2019



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

1. Corporate information

Maharashtra Transmission Communication Infrastructure Limited (‘MTCIL’ or ‘the Company’) is a
joint venture between Sterlite Technologies Limited ('STL’) and Maharashtra State Electricity
Transmission Company Limited ('MSETCL‘). The Company was incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956 on 9 August 2012. The registered office of the Company is located at
Prakashganga, Plot No C 19, E— Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai MH 400051.

The principal commercial activity of the Company would be making available fibre capacity on lease
rental to retail, wholesale and enterprise/corporate customers, drawn from Optical Power Ground Wire
(OPGW) network.

The Ind AS financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with resolution passed by the
Board of Directors of the Company on May 27, 2019.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to
the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

· Certain financial assets measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments).

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Millions, except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The following is the summary of significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing
its Ind AS financial statements:

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:

· Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
· Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
· Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
· Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

· It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
· It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;



· It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
· There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle to be twelve
months.

b) Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is its functional currency. The
Company does not have any foreign operation.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

c) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

· In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
· In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: .



Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level  2-  Valuation  techniques  for  which  the  lowest  level  input  that  is  significant  to  the  fair  value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable;

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value is
unobservable.

For  assets  and  liabilities  that  are  recognised  in  the  financial  statements  on  a  recurring  basis,  the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in
the relevant notes.

d) Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue  from  contracts  with  customers  is  recognised  when  control  of  the  goods  or  services  are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from IRU/ARC contracts:

The performance obligation is satisfied over the contract period as the services are rendered. Revenue
is recognised on a straight line over the contract period.

Maintenance charges income is recognised over time and is billed to the customer on a
monthly/quarterly basis.

Revenue from Tapping charges:

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time and payment is generally due upon completion
of service and acceptance of the customer.

Revenue from sale of traded goods:

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time upon delivery of the goods and payment is
generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery.

Other operating revenue

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time upon completion of service and acceptance of
the customer.



Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting
policies of financial assets in Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs its obligation under the
contract.

e) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside of profit or loss is recognised outside of profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised:

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that  it  is  no longer  probable that  sufficient  taxable profit  will  be available  to  allow all  or  part  of  the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re—assessed at each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset  is  realised or  the liability  is  settled,  based on tax rates  (and tax laws)  that  have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside of profit or loss is recognised outside of profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.



Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
Company and the same taxation authority.

f) Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part
of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred. No decommissioning
liabilities are expected or be incurred on the assets of plant and equipment.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during
construction period is capitalised as part of the construction costs to the extent the expenditure can be
attributable to construction activity or is incidental there to. Income earned during the construction
period is deducted from the total of the indirect expenditure.

Depreciation on the item of property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis using
the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management which are equal to the life
prescribed under the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount  of  the asset)  is  included in the statement  of  profit  or  loss  when the asset  is
derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

g) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and
the expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure
is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.



The Company does not have any intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Right of way (ROW) pertains to the right granted by Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission
Company Limited to the Company to establish communication network in the state of Maharashtra.
ROW is amortized on a straight line basis over a period of 20 years for which the right has been granted.
Gains or losses arising from de recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

h) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The  Company  assesses,  at  each  reporting  date,  whether  there  is  an  indication  that  an  asset  may  be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent  of  those from other  assets  or  groups of  assets.  When the carrying amount  of  an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies
or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long—
term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate
cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company
extrapolates cash flow in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless
an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the
market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously
revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised
in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus. An assessment is made at each reporting
date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer
exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its



recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation,  had  no  impairment  loss  been  recognised  for  the  asset  in  prior  years.  Such  reversal  is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

j) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

k) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund are defined contribution schemes. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.
If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting
the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India. The benefit plan is unfunded.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit
credit method. Re measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI
in the period in which they occur. Re measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:

· Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non—routine settlements; and

· Net interest expense or income



l) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by Regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date
i.e. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i. Debt instruments at amortised cost

ii. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

iii. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

iv. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to note 4.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income
(OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On de recognition of the asset, cumulative gain



or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR
method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s combined balance sheet) when:

· The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
· The  Company  has  transferred  its  rights  to  receive  cash  flows  from  the  asset  or  has  assumed  an

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass—through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass—through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., deposits, trade
receivables and bank balance;

b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables or contract revenue receivables.



The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12—month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of
the instrument  improves such that  there is  no longer  a  significant  increase in credit  risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12—month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12—month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with  the  contract  and  all  the  cash  flows  that  the  entity  expects  to  receive  (i.e.,  all  cash  shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

· All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected
life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument;

· Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that: are contractual terms.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in
the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described below:

· Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables: ECL is presented as
an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The
allowance reduces the net  carrying amount.  Until  the asset  meets  write-off  criteria,  the Company
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments
on  the  basis  of  shared  credit  risk  characteristics  with  the  objective  of  facilitating  an  analysis  that  is
designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit—impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e.,
financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings.



Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost  using the EIR method.  Gains and losses are  recognised in profit  or  loss  when the liabilities  are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs  that  are  an  integral  part  of  the  EIR.  The  EIR  amortisation  is  included  as  finance  costs  in  the
statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer notes 10 and 11.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced 'by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such anger-
k modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a difference
in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise of cash at bank and in hand
and short—term investments with an original maturity of three months or less which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

n) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder of
the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders of the parent company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The company does
not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares.



O) Presentation of EBITDA

The Company presents Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (‘EBITDA’) in the
Statement of profit or loss; this is not specifically required by Ind AS 1. The term EBITDA is not defined
in Ind AS. Ind AS compliant Schedule III allows companies to present line items, sub-line items and
sub—totals to be presented as an addition or substitution on the face of the financial statements when
such presentation is relevant to an understanding of the company’s financial position or performance.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to present EBITDA as a separate line item on the face of the
statement  of  profit  and  loss.  The  Company  measures  EBITDA  on  the  basis  of  profit/(loss)  from
continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization
expense, finance income, finance costs and tax expense.

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 115 was issued on 28 March 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and Ind
AS 18 Revenue and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its
customers. Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts
and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard
also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly
related to fulfilling a contract. In addition, the standard requires extensive disclosures.

The Company applied Ind AS 115 for the first time using modified retrospective approach. However,
there is no impact as a result of adoption of this new accounting standard.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in March 2019, but do not have
an impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any
standards or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

2.4 Standards issued but not yet effective:

The standards and amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt
these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by MCA on 30 March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including
appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind
AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the
accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the
same classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and
finance leases.



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

NOTE 3: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)
Property, plant and

equipment Intangible Asset

 Plant and
Machinery

 Right of Way
(RoW)*

Cost
As at 1 April 2017 443.79 51.00
Additions** (restated#) 346.42 -
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2018 (restated) 790.21 51.00
Additions** 254.55 -
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2019 1,044.76 51.00

Depreciation and Impairment
As at 1 April 2017 20.28 11.84

 Depreciation charge/ Amortisation for the year (restated#) 37.31 2.55
 Disposals - -
 As at 31 March 2018 (restated) 57.59 14.39
 Depreciation charge/ Amortisation for the year 63.06 2.55
 Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2019 120.65 16.94

Net Book Value
As at 31 March 2018 (restated) 732.62 36.61
As at 31 March 2019 924.11 34.06

** Refer Note 29 for details of expenses and interest expenses capitalised

Capital Work-in -progress

NOTE 4: TRADE RECEIVABLES
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018

(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Current
Trade receivables (Unsecured, considered good) 6.37 51.71
Receivables from related parties (Note 32) 2.42 2.42

8.79 54.13

Trade receivables are generally non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

There are no trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk or which are credit impaired.

NOTE 5: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018

(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Non-current
Security deposits 0.24 0.10

0.24 0.10
Current

18.70A Interest accrued on deposits with banks - 0.05
Advances recoverable in cash or kind (unsecured) 0.21 0.21

0.21 0.26

#During the year, the company has identified that certain links were ready for use in the previous year and should have been capitalised then. Accordingly, the
additions to Plant and Machinery and depreciation charge during the year ended March 31, 2018 have been restated and are higher by Rs. 139.06 million and
Rs. 13.75 million respectively. Consequently, the gross block and net block as at March 31, 2018 are also higher by Rs. 139.06 million and Rs. 125.31 million
respectively.

* The Right of Way (RoW) pertains to the right granted by MSETCL to the Company for a period of 20 years to establish communication network in the state
of Maharashtra. (Also refer note 9)

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other
receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Capital work in progress of Rs.10.40 million (31 March 2018: Rs.226.24 million) comprises expenditure in respect of the establishing of OPGW network in
the state of Maharashtra.



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

NOTE 6: OTHER ASSETS
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018

(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Non-Current
Balances with government authorities 61.44 75.67
Advance income tax, including TDS (net of provisions - nil) 18.38 2.28
Total Non-current 79.82 77.95

Current
Prepaid expenses 1.03 0.84
Total Current 1.03 0.84

NOTE 7: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Balance with banks - on current accounts 57.18 12.03

57.18 12.03

NOTE 7A: OTHER BANK BALANCES  31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Deposit with banks with original maturity for less than 12 months 10.25 4.53

10.25 4.53

NOTE 8: SHARE CAPITAL
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Authorised shares (no. million)
80 (31 March 2018: 80) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 800.00 800.00

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up shares (no. million)
28.20 (31 March 2018: 21.82) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 281.96 218.18

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 281.96 218.18

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

No. in Millions Rs. in Millions No. in Millions Rs. in Millions

At the beginning of the period 21.82 218.18 18.72 187.22
Issued during the year 6.38 63.78 3.10 30.97
Outstanding at the end of the year 28.20 281.96 21.82 218.18

b.  Terms/rights attached to equity shares

  - 20% in Equity shares allotted against cash consideration;
  - 9% in Equity shares allotted as bonus shares without consideration being received in cash;
  - 20% in 15% non-cumulative redeemable preference shares allotted against cash consideration.

c.  Shares held by holding company and their subsidiaries/associates:

No. in millions % holding No. in millions % holding

Sterlite Technologies Limited 19.88 70.49% 13.50 61.86%

19.88 70.49% 13.50 61.86%

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the
event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 31 March 2019  31 March 2018

STL and MSETCL have executed an addendum dated 28 August 2016 to the Joint Venture agreement dated 4 May 2012 which provides that capital structure
ratio of the Company between STL and MSETCL would be 51:49. STL's 51% stake would comprise entirely of equity shares allotted against cash
consideration. The composition of MSETCL's 49% stake would be as follows:

As a result of the above, the effective equity share capital holding ratio of the Company would be - STL: 63.75% and MSETCL: 36.25%. The effective
preference share capital holding ratio of the Company would be - STL: Nil and MSETCL: 100%

 31 March 2019  31 March 2018



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5 % of shares in the company:

No. in millions % holding No. in millions % holding

1. Sterlite Technologies Limited 19.88 70.49% 13.50 61.86%
2. Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Co. Ltd. 8.32 29.51% 8.32 38.14%

                             28.20 100.00%                           21.82 100.00%

 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
No. in millions No. in millions

                                -                            2.17

NOTE 9: OTHER EQUITY
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Securities premium account
Balance as per last financial statements - 21.72
Premium on Issue of Equity Shares 11.22 -
Less: Utilised on issue of bonus shares - (21.72)
Closing balance 11.22 -

Capital contribution*
Balance as per last financial statements 51.00 51.00
Closing balance 51.00 51.00

Deficit in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last financial statements (124.87) (72.77)
Loss for the year (78.25) (52.10)
Net deficit in the statement of profit and loss (203.12) (124.87)

NOTE 10: BORROWINGS (Secured)
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Preference shares
15% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 10 each (refer note A below) 52.24 52.24

Term loans
Indian rupee loans from banks (secured) (refer note B below) 176.11 274.24

228.35 326.48
Current Maturities
Term loans
Indian rupee loans from banks (secured) (refer note B below) 68.76 39.64
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 2.51 3.24

71.27 42.88

Amount disclosed under the head 'Other current liabilities' (Refer note 13) (71.27) (42.88)

Net amount - -

A Preference shares:
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Authorised shares (no. millions)
20 (31 March 2018: 20) preference shares of Rs. 10 each 200.00 200.00

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up shares (no. millions)
5.22 (31 March 2018: 5.22) Preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 52.24 52.24

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 52.24 52.24

 31 March 2019

Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by capitalization of securities premium

e. Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of
five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

* Sterlite Technologies Limited (holding company) had paid an amount of Rs.51 million to MSETCL in respect of the Right of Way (ROW) granted by
MSETCL to the Company for a period of 20 years to establish communication network in the state of Maharashtra which has been accounted for as Capital
contribution from the holding company (also refer note 3)

 31 March 2018



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

No. in Millions Rs. in Millions No. in Millions Rs. in Millions

At the beginning of the period 5.22 52.24 - -
Issued during the year - - 5.22 52.24
Outstanding at the end of the year 5.22 52.24 5.22 52.24

b.  Terms/rights attached to preference shares

c.  Shares held by holding company and their subsidiaries/associates:

Nil

d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of shares in the company:

No. in millions % holding No. in millions % holding

Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Co. Ltd. 5.22 100.00% 5.22 100.00%

                               5.22 100.00% 5.22 100.00%

B Term loan

NOTE 11: CURRENT BORROWINGS
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Loan from related parties (unsecured) 36.61 39.77

36.61 39.77
NOTE 12: TRADE PAYABLES

 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Current
Trade payables (refer note 28) 1.74 1.47

1.74 1.47

 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 days terms.

 31 March 2018 31 March 2019

 31 March 2018 31 March 2019

The company has obtained Indian rupee term loan of nominal value of Rs. 244.87 Million (31 March 2018: Rs. 313.88 Million) which carries interest at 1 year
MCLR of 8.5% plus BSS of 0.3% plus CRP of 2.70% (Previous year : base rate plus 1.50% p.a) from Bank of India. The loan is being repaid at quarterly instalment
of Rs.17.19 millions.
The loan is secured by the charge on entire network of OPGW telecom network facility running along the MSETCL's 2,912 kms of transmission network, including
but not limited to right of way, equipment, stocks and optical fibre cables, whether installed or lying loose or at site or in transit or acquired, relating to the project
or which may at any time during the continuance of the term loan facility, being installed or lying loose or in case being in or upon the borrower's premises in the
state of Maharashtra, excluding machinery or equipment owned by the Company's' contractor. All the present and future book debts, outstanding, money
receivables, claims, bills which are now due and owing or which may any time hereafter during continuance of this term loan facility and owing to the company in
course of its business by any person, firm, company or body corporate or by any central or state government or any government body or authority or local authority.
All insurance contracts/ proceeds relating to or pertaining to the project and aforementioned project assets.

[THIS SPACE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

The Company has issued 5.22 million, 15% non-cumulative, redeemable preference shares of face value of Rs.10 each to Maharashtra State Electricity
Transmission Co. Ltd. (MSETCL). The preference shares are redeemable at the end of 20 years from the date of issue and redeemable at Rs.10 per share. The
dividend rights are non-cumulative. The preference shares will carry a preferential right vis-à-vis equity shares of the Company with respect to the payment of
dividend and repayment of capital in the event of a liquidation.



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

NOTE 13: OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018

(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)
Non Current
Deposits from customers 4.19 4.63

4.19 4.63

Current
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer Note 10) 68.76 39.64
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2.51 3.24
Retention money - vendors 174.72 171.56
Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipments* 291.09 342.01
Payable to MSETCL 2.26 1.03
Payable to related parties 0.13 0.13
Others 4.02 1.58

543.49 559.19

* Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 90-120 days terms.

NOTE 14: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018

(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)
Non current
Provision for gratuity 1.77 0.57

1.77 0.57
Current
Provision for leave benefit 0.42 0.23

0.42 0.23

NOTE 15: CONTRACT LIABILITIES
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018

(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)
Non- Current
Unearned revenue on IRU/ARC contracts 157.02 49.28

Current
Unearned revenue on IRU/ARC contracts 11.09 18.19

168.11 67.47

NOTE 16: OTHER LIABILITIES
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Current
TDS payable 0.35 0.58
VAT Payable - 0.61

0.35 1.19

[THIS SPACE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

NOTE 16A: DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Deferred tax liability

51.37 35.59

Gross deferred tax liability                        51.37                       35.59

Deferred tax assets
Employee benefit obligations 0.57 0.21

50.80 35.38

Net deferred tax liability - -

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/liability
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Opening deferred tax asset, net - -
Deferred tax credit / (charge) recorded in statement of profit and loss - -
Deferred tax credit / (charge) recorded in OCI - -
Closing deferred tax asset, net - -

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 are:

 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences - -

Income tax expenses reported in the statement of profit or loss - -

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018:

 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Accounting profit/(loss) before income tax (77.18) (53.04)
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 26% (31 March 2018: 27.82%) (20.07) (14.75)
Deferred tax asset not recognised on tax losses carried forward 20.07 14.75
Others - -
At the effective income tax rate - -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss - -

Property plant & equipment: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation for the
financial reporting

Deferred tax asset on carried forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the extend of deferred tax
liability

[THIS SPACE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
NOTE 17: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS  31 March 2019  31 March 2018

(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of goods and services (see note below) 44.18 19.72

Other operating revenue 1.04 0.80

Total Revenue from operations 45.22 20.52

17.1 Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:

 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Revenue from IRU/ARC contracts 43.91 7.93
Revenue from Tapping charges 0.27 0.63
Revenue from sale of Traded goods - 11.16
Total revenue from contracts with customers 44.18 19.72

India 44.18 19.72
Outside India - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 44.18 19.72

Timing of revenue recognition
Revenue recognised at a point in time 0.27 11.79
Revenue recognised over time 43.91 7.93
Total revenue from contracts with customers 44.18 19.72

17.2 Contract balances
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Trade receivables 8.79 54.13
Contract liabilities 168.11 67.47

17.3 Performance obligation
Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:

Revenue from IRU/ARC contracts:

Maintenance charges income is recognised over time and is billed to the customer on a monthly/quarterly basis.

Revenue from Tapping charges:
The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time and payment is generally due upon completion of service and acceptance of the customer.

Revenue from sale of traded goods:
The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time upon delivery of the goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery.

17.4 Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities  31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Amount included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 18.19 7.40

17.5 Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
- Within one year 11.09 18.19
- More than one year 157.02 49.28

The company provides fiber capacity drawn from its OPGW network to retail, wholesale and enterprise/corporate customers on indefeasible right of use or
Annual rate contracts basis. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs its obligation under the contract. The outstanding
balances of these accounts has increased in 2018-19 due to the continuous increase in the Company’s customer base.

The Company’s primary business activity comprises of establishing communication network in the state of Maharashtra, India. Based on the guiding
principles given in Ind AS - 108 “Operating Segments”, this activity falls within a single operating segment and accordingly the disclosures of Ind AS -108
have not been given.

Type of goods or service

The performance obligation is satisfied over the contract period as the services are rendered. Revenue is recognised on a straight line over the contract period.
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NOTE 18: OTHER INCOME

 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Miscellaneous income 0.18 1.69

0.18 1.69

NOTE 19: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Salaries, wages and bonus 6.81 5.78
Contribution to provident fund 0.19 0.17
Gratuity expenses (refer note 26) 0.13 0.19
Staff welfare expenses 0.17 0.14

7.30 6.28

NOTE 20: DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Depreciation of tangible assets 63.06 35.69
Amortisation of intangible assets 2.55 2.55

                          65.61                          38.24

NOTE 21: FINANCE INCOME
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

20.70A Interest income 0.81 0.07

0.81 0.07

NOTE 22: FINANCE COST
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Interest expense on loan from banks 27.42 17.94
Bank charges 0.11 0.84

27.53 18.78

NOTE 23: EXPENSES
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Rates and taxes 0.88 0.21
Network repairs and maintenance charges 11.27 -
Power expenses 1.11 -
Travelling and conveyance 0.95 0.50
Legal and professional expenses 2.14 0.66
Revenue share to MSETCL 2.26 1.03
Payment to auditor (refer details below) 0.45 0.45
Insurance 1.22 0.18
Miscellaneous expenses 2.67 0.73

                          22.95                            3.76
As auditor:
        Audit fee 0.25 0.25
        Tax audit fee 0.20 0.20

Total 0.45 0.45

[THIS SPACE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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NOTE 24: EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Loss for the year (77.18) (53.04)

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS 27.99 21.41

Earning per share
  Basic and Diluted (on nominal value of Rs. 10 per share) Rupees/share (2.76) (2.48)

NOTE 25: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

NOTE 26: Employee Benefit obligations

Defined contribution plans - provident fund:

Post employment benefit obligations - Gratuity

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars  31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 0.57 1.32
Interest Cost 0.04 0.10
Current service cost 0.09 0.09
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to change in financial Assumption 0.02 (0.01)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation due to Experience 1.04 (0.93)
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the Period 1.77 0.57

Details of defined benefit obligation

Particulars  31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Present value of defined benefit  obligation 1.77 0.57
Fair value of plan assets - -

Plan liability 1.77 0.57

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% basic salary as per the regulations. The contributions are made to
registered provident fund administered by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed it has no further contractual
nor any constructive obligation. Also refer Note 19.

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate
used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive
to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers
the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is
based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases
and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent of deferred tax liability considering the probability of taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan which is managed by the Holding Company. Every employee who has completed five years or more of
service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.
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Net employee benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars  31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Current service cost 0.09 0.09
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.04 0.10
Expected return on plan assets - -
Contribution by employer - -
Net benefit expense 0.13 0.19

Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for Current Period

Particulars  31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Obligation for the period 1.07 (0.94)
Return on Plan assets , Excluding Interest Income - -
Change in Asset Ceiling - -
Net (Income)/Expense for the period recognized in OCI 1.07 (0.94)

Amounts for the current and previous periods are as follows:
Particulars  31 March 2019  31 March 2018

(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)
Defined benefit obligation 1.77 0.60
Plan assets - -
Surplus / (deficit) (1.77) (0.60)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities                             1.04 (0.93)
Experience adjustments on plan assets - -

The principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligation are shown below:

Particulars  31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Discount rate 7.50% 7.80%
Expected rate of return on plan asset NA NA
Employee turnover 10.00% 10.00%
Expected rate of salary increase 8.00% 8.00%
Actual rate of return on plan assets NA NA

Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars  31 March 2019  31 March 2018

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 1.77 0.57
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (0.08) (0.03)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 0.08 0.04
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 0.08 0.04
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (0.08) (0.03)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover* (0.00) (0.00)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover* 0.00 0.00
* Amounts below Rs. 0.01 million

Maturity Analysis of projected benefit obligation: From the Employer

Particulars  31 March 2019  31 March 2018
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting
1st Following Year 0.18 0.04
2nd Following Year 0.18 0.43
3rd Following Year 0.17 0.58
4th Following Year 0.17 0.56
5th Following Year 0.16 0.54
Sum of years 6 to 10 1.61 0.25
Sum of years 11 and above 0.11 0.54

The estimated future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account the effect of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors
such as supply and demand in the employment market. The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing
as on balance sheet date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

[THIS SPACE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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NOTE 27: CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

NOTE 28: DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES AS PER MSMED ACT, 2006

NOTE 29: CAPITALISATION OF EXPENSES

Details of such expenses included in capital work in progress are as follows:

 31 March 2019  31 March 2018
(Rs. in Millions) (Rs. in Millions)

Opening balance of expenditure included in CWIP                           15.12                          38.64

Additions during the year:
Finance cost                             6.37                            9.93

                            6.37                            9.93

Less: Transferred to property, plant and equipment during the year                           21.49                          33.45

Closing balance of expenditure in CWIP                                 -                          15.12

[THIS SPACE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

As at 31 March 2019, no supplier has intimated the company about its status as micro or small enterprises, or its registration, with the appropriate authority
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence, the amount due to such suppliers has not been identified.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (Net of advances) is Rs. Nil (31 March 2018: Rs.101.57
Millions)

The expenditure incidental to the setting up of the project is capitalised and included in Capital Work in Progress which is apportioned to the assets on
completion of the project and commencement of commercial operations.
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NOTE 30: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(a) Market risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate sensitivity

(Rs. in Millions)

31 March 2019
 Base Rate +50 1.44
 Base Rate -50 (1.44)
31 March 2018
 Base Rate +50 1.35
 Base Rate -50 (1.35)

(b) Credit risk

Trade receivables

Balances with banks

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and provisions.
The following assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

• The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and
financial liabilities held at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate primarily relates to the Company's long term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates on loans and borrowings. With all the other variables held
constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Increase/decrease
in basis points

Effect on profit
before tax / pre-

tax equity

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and balances with banks.

Customer credit risk is managed through established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables
are regularly monitored. As are 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the outstanding balance relates to very few customers and management expects to collect the
amount in near future.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The calculation is based on historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk of the components of
balance sheet at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in note 4, 5, 7 and 7A. The Company does not hold collateral as
security.

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are
made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of
Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss
through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt are all constant as at 31
March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and other
financial assets that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below

The Risk Management policies of the Company are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities.

Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. In performing its operating, investing and
financing activities, the Company is exposed to the Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and Market risk.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three
types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include
loans and borrowings. The Company is not exposed to currency risk and other price risk.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.
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(c) Liquidity risk

(Rs. in Millions)
Particulars Payable on

demand
Less than 3

months
 3 months to

 12 months
 1 year to

5 years > 5 years  Total

As at 31 March 2019
Borrowings                  36.61                  17.19                            51.57                        176.11                        52.24 333.72
Other financial liabilities                          -                    8.92                                   -                            4.19                                - 13.11
Trade payables                          -                    1.74                                   -                                  -                                - 1.74
Payables for purchase of Property, plant
and equipment

                         -                291.09                         174.72                                  -                                - 465.81

36.61 318.94 226.29 180.30 52.24 814.38

As at 31 March 2018
Borrowings 39.77 9.91 29.73 158.56 167.92 405.89
Other financial liabilities - 5.98 - 4.63 - 10.61
Trade payables - 1.47 - - - 1.47
Payables for purchase of Property, plant
and equipment

- 342.02 171.56 - - 513.58

39.77 359.38 201.29 163.19 167.92 931.55

NOTE 31: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

 As at
31 March 2019

 As at
31 March  2018

(Rs. In Millions) (Rs. In Millions)

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 281.48 353.65
15% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares 52.24 52.24
Trade payables 1.74 1.47
Other financial liabilities 478.92 524.18
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and current investments (67.43) (16.56)
Net debt 746.95 914.98

Equity share capital 281.96 218.18
Other equity (140.90) (73.87)
Total capital 141.06 144.31
Capital and net debt 888.01 1,059.29
Gearing ratio 84.11% 86.38%

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company's policy is to keep the gearing ratio optimum.
The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents and current investments.

Particulars

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately
call loans and borrowings.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The average credit period taken to settle trade payables is about 30 to
90 days. The other payables are with short term durations. The carrying amounts are assumed to be reasonable approximation of fair value. The table below
summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting its present and future obligations associated with financial liabilities that are required
to be settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's objective is to, at all times, maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and
collateral obligations. The Company requires funds both for short term operational needs as well as for long term investment programs mainly in projects. The
Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It aims to minimise these risks by generating sufficient cash flows
from its current operations, which in addition to the available cash and cash equivalents, liquid investments and sufficient committed fund facilities, will provide
liquidity.
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NOTE 32: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A Name of Related Party and nature of relationships

a. Related party where control exists:

Name of the related party Nature of relationship
Sterlite Technologies Limited (STL) Immediate Holding Company
Twinstar Overseas Limited, Mauritius Intermediate Holding Company
Volcan Investments Limited, Bahamas Ultimate Holding Company

b. Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Sterlite Power Transmission Limited (SPTL) Fellow subsidiary
Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company
Limited (MSETCL)

Entity Exercising Significant Influence

B. The transactions with related parties during the year and their outstanding balances are as follows:
(Rs. in Millions)

Particulars
SPTL STL MSETCL SPTL STL MSETCL

Issue of Equity shares (including bonus shares) - 75.00 - - - 30.97
Issue of 15%  Non-Cumulative, redeemable Preference
shares

- - - - - 52.24

Purchase of property, plant and equipment* 31.08 - - 267.58 - -
Revenue share of MSETCL - - 2.26 - - 1.03
Sale of traded goods - - - - - 11.16
Short term advances received - 6.84 - - 23.37 -
Short term advances repaid - 10.00 - - - -
Reimbursement of expenses paid or payable - - - 0.13 - -

Payables* 0.48 36.61 2.26 0.13 39.77 1.03
Receivables - - 2.42 - - 2.42

[THIS SPACE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Transactions during the year

Closing balances

* Purchases have been made from Consortium with KEC International Ltd as the lead partner and Sterlite Power Transmission Limited as the consortium member.
As at the year end an amount of Rs.462.66 Millions (31 March 2018: Rs.472.34 Millions) in respect of the purchases made is payable to KEC International Ltd as
the lead member of consortium.
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NOTE 33: FAIR VALUE

NOTE 34: SEGMENT DISCLOSURES

As per our report of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Maharashtra Transmission Communication Infrastructure Limited
Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003

per Paul Alvares Nanda K. Panda Ravindra D. Chavan
Partner Managing Director Chairman
Membership Number: 105754 DIN:07738203 DIN:06537224

Ashok Gandhi Tanu Singh
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2019 Date: May 27, 2019 Date: May 27, 2019

The Company’s primary business activity comprises of establishing communication network in the state of Maharashtra, India. Based on the guiding
principles given in Ind AS - 108 “Operating Segments”, this activity falls within a single operating segment and accordingly the disclosures of Ind AS -108
have not been given.

There are no financial instruments which are measured or disclosed at fair value as at year end. The management assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, other current assets and liabilities and borrowings approximate their carrying amounts.
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Independent auditor’s report 
in accordance with article 14 of Legislative Decree No. 39 of 27 January 2010 
 
 

 
 
To the sole shareholder of Sterlite Technologies SpA 
 
 
 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Sterlite Technologies SpA (the Company), which 
comprise the balance sheet as of 31 December 2018, the income statement and statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended and related notes. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Company as of 31 December 2018, and of the result of its operations and cash flows for the year then 
ended in compliance with the Italian laws governing the criteria for their preparation. 
 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia).  
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of this report. We are independent of the Company 
pursuant to the regulations and standards on ethics and independence applicable to audits of 
financial statements under Italian law. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
 
Other Aspects 
 
As required by law, the Company has included in the explanatory notes the essential data of the last 
financial statements of the company that exercises the management and coordination activity on it. 
Our opinion on Sterlite Technologies SpA's financial statements does not extend to such data. 
 
 
Responsibilities of the Directors and the Board of Statutory Auditors for the Financial 
Statements 
 
The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view 
in accordance with the Italian laws governing the criteria for their preparation and, in the terms 
prescribed by law, for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation 
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of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
The directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and, 
in preparing the financial statements, for the appropriate application of the going concern basis of 
accounting, and for disclosing matters related to going concern. In preparing the financial statements, 
the directors use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
The board of statutory auditors is responsible for overseeing, in the terms prescribed by law, the 
Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia) will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 
 
As part of our audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia), 
we exercised our professional judgement and maintained professional scepticism throughout the 
audit. Furthermore: 
 
 We identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error; we designed and performed audit procedures responsive to 
those risks; we obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

 We obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;  

 We evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors; 

 We concluded on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; 

 We evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicated with those charged with governance, identified at an appropriate level as required 
by ISA Italia, regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
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significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identified 
during our audit. 
 
 

Report on Compliance with other Laws and Regulations 
 
 
Opinion in accordance with Article 14, paragraph 2, letter e), of Legislative Decree 
No. 39/10  
 
The directors of Sterlite Technologies SpA are responsible for preparing a report on operations of 
Sterlite Technologies SpA as of 31 December 2018, including its consistency with the relevant financial 
statements and its compliance with the law. 
 
We have performed the procedures required under auditing standard (SA Italia) No. 720B in order to 
express an opinion on the consistency of the report on operations with the financial statements of 
Sterlite Technologies SpA as of 31 December 2018 and on its compliance with the law, as well as to 
issue a statement on material misstatements, if any. 
 
In our opinion, the report on operations is consistent with the financial statements of Sterlite 
Technologies SpA as of 31 December 2018 and is prepared in compliance with the law. 
 
With reference to the statement referred to in article 14, paragraph 2, letter e), of Legislative Decree 
No. 39/10, issued on the basis of our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its 
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have nothing to report. 
 
 
Brescia, 07 June2019 
 
PricewaterhouseCoopers SpA 
 
 
Signed by 
 
Alessandro Mazzetti 
(Partner) 
 
 
 
This report has been translated into English from the Italian original solely for the convenience of 
international readers 
 
 
 



 

 

Independent auditor’s report 
in accordance with article 14 of Legislative Decree No. 39 of 27 January 2010  
 

 
 
To the sole shareholder of Sterlite Technologies Spa 
 
 
 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sterlite Technologies Group (the Group), 
which comprise the balance sheet as of 31 december 2018, the income statement and statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended and related notes. 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the Group as of 31 december 2018, and of the result of its operations and cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with the Italian laws governing the criteria for their preparation. 
 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia).  
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of this report. We are independent of 
Sterlite Technologies SpA (the Company) pursuant to the regulations and standards on ethics and 
independence applicable to audits of financial statements under Italian law. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
 
Other Aspects 
 
As required by law, the Company has included in the explanatory notes the essential data of the last 
financial statements of the company that exercises the management and coordination activity on it. 
Our opinion on Sterlite Technologies SpA's financial statements does not extend to such data. 
 
 
Responsibilities of the Directors and the Board of Statutory Auditors for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true 
and fair view in accordance with the Italian laws governing the criteria for their preparation and, in 
the terms prescribed by law, for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the 
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preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
 
The directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and, in 
preparing the consolidated financial statements, for the appropriate application of the going concern 
basis of accounting, and for disclosing matters related to going concern. In preparing the consolidated 
financial statements, the directors use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend 
to liquidate Sterlite Technologies SpA or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do 
so.  
 
The board of statutory auditors is responsible for overseeing, in the terms prescribed by law, the 
Group’s financial reporting process. 
 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing (ISA Italia) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the 
consolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of our audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia), 
we exercised professional judgement and maintained professional scepticism throughout the audit. 
Furthermore: 
 
 We identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error; we designed and performed audit procedures 
responsive to those risks; we obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

 We obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control;  

 We evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors; 

 We concluded on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going 
concern; 
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 We evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 We obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. 

 
We communicated with those charged with governance, identified at an appropriate level as required 
by ISA Italia regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identified 
during our audit. 
 
 

Report on Compliance with other Laws and Regulations 
 
 
Opinion in accordance with Article 14, paragraph 2, letter e), of Legislative Decree 
No. 39/10  
 
The directors of Stelite Technologies SpA are responsible for preparing a report on operations of the 
Sterlite Technologies Group as of 31 december 2018, including its consistency with the relevant 
consolidated financial statements and its compliance with the law. 
 
We have performed the procedures required under auditing standard (SA Italia) No. 720B in order to 
express an opinion on the consistency of the report on operations with the consolidated financial 
statements of the Sterlite Technologies Group as of 31 december 2018 and on its compliance with the 
law, as well as to issue a statement on material misstatements, if any. 
 
In our opinion, the report on operations is consistent with the consolidated financial statements of 
Sterlite Technologies Group as of 31 december and is prepared in compliance with the law. 
 
With reference to the statement referred to in article 14, paragraph 2, letter e), of Legislative Decree 
No. 39/10, issued on the basis of our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its 
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have nothing to report. 
 
 
Brescia, 07 June 2019 
 
PricewaterhouseCoopers SpA 
 
 
Signed by 
 
Alessandro Mazzetti 
(Partner) 
 
 
This report has been translated into English from the Italian original solely for the convenience of 
international readers 



 

XBRL Financial statements 1 

 

 

 General information about the company  

Name and id code 

Company name:  STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A.  

Company site:  VIA DEL VECCHIO POLITECNICO 9 MILANO MI  

Share capital:  5.050.000,00  

Fully paid-in share capital:  Yes  

Registration Authority id code:  MI  

VAT number:  10309460961  

Fiscal code:  10309460961  

Registration number:  2521369  

Legal form:  SOCIETA' PER AZIONI  

Activity Code:  701000  

Company being wound up:  No  

Company with a single shareholder:  Yes  

Company subject to the management and coordination of 

others: 

 Yes 

belonging to a group:  Yes  

Name of the controlling entity:  STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 

Country of the controlling entity:  INDIA  

  

 

 

 

Financial statements as at 31/12/2018  
 

Ordinary balance sheet 

 31/12/2018 

Assets  

B) Fixed assets  

 III - Financial fixed assets - 

  1) equity investments - 

   a) subsidiary companies 46.866.534 

  Total equity investments 46.866.534 

 Total financial fixed assets 46.866.534 

Total fixed assets (B) 46.866.534 

C) Current assets  
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 31/12/2018 

 II - Receivables - 

  2) due from subsidiary companies 950.000 

   due within the following year 950.000 

  5-bis) due from tax authorities 32.234 

   due within the following year 32.234 

  5-quater) due from third parties 3.438 

   due within the following year 3.438 

 Total receivables 985.672 

 IV - Liquid funds - 

  1) bank and post office deposits 78.756 

 Total liquid funds 78.756 

Total current assets (C) 1.064.428 

Total assets 47.930.962 

Liabilities and shareholders' equity  

A) Shareholders' equity 4.392.223 

 I - Share capital 5.050.000 

 IX - Profit (loss) for the year (657.777) 

 Total Shareholders' Equity 4.392.223 

D) Payables  

 4) due to banks 43.277.935 

  due within the following year 164.191 

  due beyond the following year 43.113.744 

 7) trade accounts 160.804 

  due within the following year 160.804 

 9) due to subsidiary companies 100.000 

  due within the following year 100.000 

Total payables (D) 43.538.739 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 47.930.962 
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Ordinary P&L account 

 31/12/2018 

A) Value of production  

 5) Other income and revenues - 

  other 150.000 

 Total Other income and revenues 150.000 

Total value of production 150.000 

B) Cost of production  

 7) Services 200.318 

Total cost of production 200.318 

Difference between value and cost of production (A - B) (50.318) 

C) Financial income and expense  

 17) Interest and other financial expense - 

  other 607.459 

 Total interest and other financial expense 607.459 

Total financial income and expense (15 + 16 - 17 + - 17-bis) (607.459) 

Profit before taxes (A - B + - C + - D) (657.777) 

21) Net profit (loss) for the year (657.777) 
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Statement of cash flows, indirect method 

 
Amount as at 

31/12/2018 

A) Financial flow from operations (indirect method)  

Net profit (loss) for the year (657.777) 

Interest expenses/(income) 607.459 

1) Profit (loss) for the fiscal year before income taxes, dividends and capital gains/losses from disposals (50.318) 

2) Financial flow before changes to the net working capital (50.318) 

Changes in net working capital  

Increase/(Decrease) in payables due to suppliers 160.804 

Other decreases/(Other increases) of net working capital (885.672) 

Total changes in net working capital (724.868) 

3) Financial flow after changes to the net working capital (775.186) 

Other adjustments  

Interest collected/(paid) (607.459) 

Total other adjustments (607.459) 

Financial flow from operations (A) (1.382.645) 

B) Financial flow from investing activities  

Financial fixed assets  

(Investments) (46.866.534) 

Cash flow from investing activities (B) (46.866.534) 

C) Financial flow from financing activities  

Loan capital  

Increase/(Decrease) in short-term payables due to banks 164.191 

New loans 43.113.744 

Equity  

Increase in paid share capital 5.050.000 

Cash flow from financing activities (C) 48.327.935 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A ± B ± C) 78.756 

Cash and cash equivalents at the fiscal year end  

bank and post office deposits 78.756 

Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the fiscal year 78.756 
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Information at the end of the statement of cash flows 

STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A., installed on April 9th, 2018, carry on the activity of investment’s mangement 

(Holding) in other companies working in the metallurgical sector and in the sector of the metallurgical manufacturing, 

production and/or trade. This Financial Statements is the first Financial Statements of STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A. 

The sole shareholder is STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED, resident in India, E1, MIDC Industrial Area, Waluj 

Aurangabad, Maharashtra; the sole shareholder carry on the activity of production and sale of telecomunication product, 

integrated optical fiber included and other telecomunication product, as optical fiber cables, telecomunication clables in 

copper, etc. 

We point out that during the fiscal year 2018, and exactly on July 20th, 2018, STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A. has 

acquired by COMPAGNIA BRESCIANA INVESTIMENTI S.P.A. (Brescia, Via Antonio Calligari 4, Chambre of 

Commerce of Brescia and Fiscal Code nr. 01341140174) the toal shares in METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A. (Dello 

(BS), Via G. Marconi 31, Commerce of Brescia and Fiscal Code nr.02132320173) becominf the sole shareholder of the 

latter.  
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Explanatory notes, initial part 

Dear Shareholders: these explanatory notes to the financial statements are integral part of the financial statements to 

31/12/2018. 

We point out that according to Article 2364 of the Italian Civil Code and according to Article 14.1 of the Company By-Law, 

the Shareholders’ meeting for the approving of the Financial Statements as at December 31st, 2018 has been held within the 

longer period of 180 days. 

The financial statements comply with the requirements of articles 2423 and following of the Italian Civil Code and with the 

national accounting standards published by the Italian Accounting Board; therefore, they describe, clearly, truthfully, and 

accurately the assets and financial situation of the company and the economic outcome for the fiscal year. 

The contents of the balance sheet and income statement are those required by articles 2424 and 2425 of the Italian Civil 

Code, while the statement of the financial position was prepared in accordance with art. 2425-ter. 

The explanatory notes to the financial statements, written in accordance with art. 2427 of the Italian Civil Code, also contain 

all information useful to provide a correct interpretation of the financial statements.  

In accordance with art. 27 par. 3 of Legislative Decree 127/91, the company STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A. is 

exempted from the obligation to prepare the consolidated financial statements because it is itself a subsidiary whose parent 

company holds at least 95% of the shares or quotas of the subsidiary or, if the above condition is not satisfied, the preparation 

of the consolidated financial statements was not requested by shareholders representing at least 5% of the share capital. 

However, according to art. 27 c.4 of Legislative Decree 127/91, the exemption is applicable only when the parent company 

is resident in a Member State of the European Union. The company STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A. is not controlled 

by a EU Company and so it is not exempted from the obligation to prepare the consolidated financial statements. 

Basis of preparation 

Financial Statement preparation 

The information contained in this document is reported based on the order of the items in the balance sheet and P&L account.  

In reference to the indications in the introduction to these Explanatory Notes, we declare that, in accordance with article 

2423, 3rd paragraph of the Italian Civil Code, if the disclosures required by specific legal provisions are not sufficient for 

giving a truthful and fair representation of the company’s situation, additional disclosures are provided considered necessary 

for this purpose.  

The financial statements, as well as these explanatory notes to the financial statements were written in units of Euros.  

Publishing principles 

The financial statement items were valued in accordance with the principles of prudence and materiality and on the 

assumption that the business is a going concern. Pursuant to Article 2423-bis(1)(1-bis) of the Italian Civil Code, the items 

were recorded and presented taking into account the substance of the transaction or the contract. When preparing the financial 

statements the income and expenses were recorded on the basis of the accrual principle, regardless of the actual date of 

payment and only profits made at the year-end date were stated. Account was also taken of the risks and losses pertaining to 

the year, even if they came to light after year end.  

Structure and contents of the financial statement 

The balance sheet, income statement, statement of cash flows, and accounting information found in these explanatory notes 

are consistent with the accounting entries, from which they were directly derived.  

The Balance Sheet and P&L Account do not contain groupings of items preceded by Arabic numeral, as instead optionally 

allowed by article 2423 ter of the Italian Civil Code.  

In accordance with article 2424 of the Italian Civil Code, it should be noted that there are no asset and liability elements 

which are under more than one item in the financial statement schedule.  
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Exceptional cases pursuant to art. 2423, fifth paragraph, of the Civil Code 

There were no exceptional cases requiring use of the derogations referred to in Article 2423(4) and (5) of the Italian Civil 

Code.  

Changed accounting principles 

There were no exceptional cases requiring use of the derogations referred to in Article 2423-bis(2) of the Italian Civil Code.  

Applied evaluation criteria 

In accordance with article 2427, paragraph 1, n° 1 of the Italian Civil Code, the most significant valuation criteria adopted 

in observance of the provisions of art. 2426 of the Italian Civil Code are shown, with special reference to the balance sheet 

items for which the law allows several valuation and adjustment criteria or for which no specific criteria are provided.  

The accounting amounts expressed in foreign currency were entered after conversion into euro according to the exchange 

rate existing at the time of their assessment or at the exchange rate on the fiscal year's closing date based on the indications 

of OIC accounting standard no. 26.   

Financial fixed assets 

Equity investments 

All of the equity investments entered in the financial statements were measured with the cost method, where cost is 

considered as the charge incurred for the purchase, regardless of the payment method, including any incidental charges (bank 

fees and expenses, revenue stamps, bank intermediation, etc.).  

The company applies the amortised cost and discounting rules. However long-term equity investments for which payment 

is deferred under conditions that differ from those normally practised on the market, for similar or comparable transactions, 

were recorded in the financial statements at the current value of the future contractual payments determined pursuant to OIC 

19, plus additional charges.  

Receivables included among current assets 

The credits entered among the current assets were recognized in the financial statements in accordance with the depreciated 

cost criterion, as defined by art. 2426, par. 2 of the Italian Civil Code, taking into account the time factor and the presumable 

realization value, in accordance with the provisions of art. 2426, paragraph 1, N° 8 of the Italian Civil Code. 

Credits for which the depreciated cost method and/or the discounting to current value are not applicable were entered at their 

presumable realization value, in order to provide a truthful and accurate representation of the balance sheet and income 

statement situation. This situation occurred, for example, in the case of debts with a maturity of less than twelve months or, 

with reference to the depreciated cost method, in the case in which the transaction costs, commissions, and any other 

differences between initial value and value at maturity are negligible or, also, in the case of discounting to current value, 

when the interest rate inferable from the contractual conditions does not differ significantly from the market interest rate.  

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at nominal value.  

Shareholders' equity 

The items are entered in the financial statements at their accounting amount based on the indications contained in OIC 

accounting standard no. 28.  
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Payables 

The debts were recognized in the financial statements in accordance with the depreciated cost criterion, as defined by art. 

2426 of the Italian Civil Code, taking into account the time factor, in accordance with the terms of art. 2426, paragraph 1, 

N° 8 of the Italian Civil Code. Debts for which the depreciated cost method and/or the discounting to current value are not 

applicable were entered at their nominal value, in order to provide a truthful and accurate representation of the balance sheet 

and income statement situation. This situation occurred, for example, in the case of debts with a maturity of less than twelve 

months or, with reference to the depreciated cost method, in the case in which the transaction costs, commissions, and any 

other differences between initial value and value at maturity are negligible or, also, in the case of discounting to current 

value, when the interest rate inferable from the contractual conditions does not differ significantly from the market interest 

rate.  

Other information 

Transactions with grant back obligation 

In accordance with art. 2427, n° 6-ter, the company certifies that, during the fiscal year, the company did not perform any 

transaction subject to the grant back obligation.  
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Explanatory notes, assets 

A detailed analysis is provided below of the changes in the individual financial statement items, in accordance with the 

provisions of current legislation.  

Fixed assets 

Finance leases operations 

The company had no finance lease contracts in progress at the fiscal year’s closing date.   

Financial fixed assets 

We point out that during the fiscal year 2018, and exactly on July 20th, 2018, STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A. has 

acquired by COMPAGNIA BRESCIANA INVESTIMENTI S.P.A. (Brescia, Via Antonio Calligari 4, Chambre of 

Commerce of Brescia and Fiscal Code nr. 01341140174) the toal shares in METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A. (Dello 

(BS), Via G. Marconi 31, Commerce of Brescia and Fiscal Code nr.02132320173) becominf the sole shareholder of the 

latter. 

Movements in investments, other securities, and noncurrent financial asset derivative instruments 

The table below shows the movements in the assets in question.  

Details on noncurrent investments in subsidiaries 

The following schedule indicates the investments related to subsidiaries, as well as additional information requested by art. 

2427 of the Italian Civil Code.  

Company name 
City, if in Italy, or 
foreign country 

Tax code (for Italian 
companies) 

Capital in Euros 
Shares held in 

Euros 
Share possessed in 

% 

METALLURGICA 
BRESCIANA SPA a 
socio unico 

DELLO (BS) 02132320173 7.000.000 7.000.000 100,000 

Value of financial assets 

The financial assets shown in the financial statements were not entered at a value greater than their fair value.  

Current assets 

Receivables included among current assets 

Changes and due date of the credits entered in the current assets 

The table below shows the information on the changes in receivables entered in current assets as well as information on their 

due dates, if significant.  

 Change during the year Year closing balance 
Portion due within fiscal 

year 

subsidiary companies 950.000 950.000 950.000 

due from tax authorities 32.234 32.234 32.234 

due from third parties 3.438 3.438 3.438 
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 Change during the year Year closing balance 
Portion due within fiscal 

year 

Total 985.672 985.672 985.672 

 

The Receivables included among current assets have a value of Euro 985,672; we point out that has not been accounte a 

credit risk provision. In particular we point out that the receivables included among current assets may be broke down as 

follow: 

- Receivables due to subsidiary companies – Euro 950,000: this receivable for Euro 800,000 refers to a interest 

bearing shareholder loan contract, as following reported: 

 Amount: Euro 10,000,000 

 Signed date: Sept 17th, 2018 

 Duration: 3 + 1 years 

 Interest rate: EURIBOR+1.50% 

The receivables due to subsidiary companies for interest bearing shareholder loan contract are equal to Euro 800,000 

as at December 31st, 2018. 

Other receivables due to subsidiary companies of Euro 100,000 referes to management fees. 

- Receivables due from tax authorities – Euro 32.234: this credit refers a VAT tax credit; 

- Receivables due from third parties – Euro 3,438: this credit refers to a receivables vs bank. 

  

Breakdown of receivables included among current assets by geographic area 

The following table shows the distribution by geographical area of the credits entered among the current assets.  

Geographic area 

Receivables due from 
subsidiary companies 

included among current 
assets 

Tax receivables 
included among current 

assets 

Other receivables 
included among current 

assets 

Total receivables 
included among current 

assets 

Italy 950.000 32.234 3.438 985.672 

Total 950.000 32.234 3.438 985.672 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 

The table below provides information on the changes in cash and cash equivalents   

 Changes during the year Year closing balance 

bank and post office deposits 78.756 78.756 

Total 78.756 78.756 

Capitalized financial assets 

All of the interests and other financial expenses have been entirely expensed during the fiscal year. We declare that no 

capitalization of financial expenses exists for the purposes of article 2427, paragraph 1 of the Italian Civil Code.  
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Explanatory notes, liabilities and shareholders' equity 

A detailed analysis is provided below of the changes in the individual financial statement items, in accordance with the 

provisions of current legislation.  

Shareholders' equity 

We point out that this financial statements represent the first fiscal year of STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A. 

Changes in shareholders' equity 

In reference to the closing fiscal year, the tables below show the changes of the individual shareholders’ equity, as well as 

the details of other reserves, if present in the financial statements.  

 Other changes - Increases Results for the fiscal year Year closing balance 

Share capital 5.050.000 - 5.050.000 

Net profit (loss) for the year - (657.777) (657.777) 

Total 5.050.000 (657.777) 4.392.223 

 

All subscribed shares are entirely paid in.  

Use of shareholders' equity 

The following schedules indicate the items of the equity investment, specifying their origin, possible utilization and 

distribution, as well as their utilization during the previous three fiscal years.  

Description Amount Origin / nature Possibility of use 

Share capital 5.050.000 Share capital  

Total 5.050.000   

LEGEND: A: increase of share capital; B: coverage of losses; C: distribution to shareholders; D: for other obligations imposed 
by the article of association; E: other 

Payables 

Payables changes and due date 

The table below shows the information on changes in payables and any information related to their due dates.  

 
Change during the 

year 
Year closing balance 

Portion due within 
fiscal year 

Portion due beyond 
fiscal year 

due to banks 43.277.935 43.277.935 164.191 43.113.744 

trade accounts 160.804 160.804 160.804 - 

due to subsidiary companies 100.000 100.000 100.000 - 

Total 43.538.739 43.538.739 424.995 43.113.744 
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The payables are equal to Euro 43,538,739 and they may be broke down as follow: 

- Payables due to banks – Euro 43,277,935: this payable refers to a portion due within the following year related to 

passive interest due to banks for a loan (Euro 164,191) and a portion due beyond the following year related to a 

contract loan (Euro 43,113,744). 

We point out that the amount of Euro 438,739 is connected to passive interests; 

- Payables due for trade accounts – Euro 160,804: this payable refers to a quota total due within the following year; 

- Payables due to subsidiary companies – Euro 100,000: this payable refers to a quota total due within the following 

year. 

Payables due to banks 

The following table shows the subdivision of the item “Debts to banks”.  

Entry Rounding Total 

4) 43.277.935 43.277.935 

Breakdown of payables by geographic area 

The following table shows the distribution by geographical area of the debts.  

Geographic area due to banks trade accounts 
due to subsidiary 

companies 
Payables 

Italy 20.183.633 120.804 100.000 20.404.437 

UE 23.094.302 40.000 - 23.134.302 

Total 43.277.935 160.804 100.000 43.538.739 

Payables covered by real guarantees on social assets 

Pursuant to article 2427, paragraph 1, no. 6 of the Italian Civil Code, we declare that there are no company payables secured 

by collateral.  

Loans by shareholders 

The company did not receive any loans from shareholders.  
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Explanatory notes, P&L account 

The income statement shows the economic outcome for the fiscal year. 

It shows the operating activities through a summary of the revenue and cost components of the income that contributed to 

the economic outcome. The revenue and cost components of the income, entered in the financial statements as required by 

article 2425-bis of the Italian Civil Code, are grouped in a way that provides meaningful intermediate results and are 

distinguished depending on the various operations to which they belong: ordinary, accessory, and financial. 

The ordinary activity identifies the income components generated by operations that are performed continuously and in the 

sector pertinent to the performance of the operation, which identify and qualify the specific and distinctive part of the 

economic activity carried out by the company and which is the company’s business purpose. 

The financial activity consists of transactions that generate revenues and expenses of financial nature. 

Finally, the accessory activity consists of the operations that generate income components that are part of the ongoing 

activity, but do not fall into the ordinary and financial activity.  

VALUE OF PRODUCTION 

Revenues are entered in the financial statements on accrual basis of accounting, net of returns, allowances, discounts, and 

bonuses, as well as of the taxes directly linked to them.  

Breakdown of net revenue by business category 

We point out that the Value of Production refers only to other income and revenues for an amount of Euro 150,000 as at 

December 31st, 2018; this revenues are connected to the cost of labour and to other costs paid by STERLITE 

TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A. but property of METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A. and so invoiced to the latter.  

Cost of production 

The costs and charges are attributed on accrual basis of accounting and according to their nature, net of returns, allowances, 

discounts, and premiums, in compliance with the principle of correlation with the revenues; they are entered in the respective 

items as required by accounting standard OIC 12. The costs incurred to purchase goods are entered when the substantive, 

not the formal transfer of the ownership title occurs; the reference parameter for the substantive transfer is the transfer of the 

risks and benefits. When services are purchased, the related costs are entered when the service is received, that is when the 

service has been performed; in the case of ongoing services, the related costs are entered for the portion accrued.  

Financial income and charges 

Financial income and charges are entered on accrual basis of accounting based on the portion accrued during the fiscal year. 

Composition of share income 

There is no income from equity investments as per article 2425 no. 15 of the Italian Civil Code.  

Breakdown of interest and other financial liabilities by payables type 

The schedule below shows the interest expenses and other financial expenses as per article 2425, no. 17 of the Italian Civil 

Code, with specific division between those related to debenture bonds, payables due to banks and other types.  

 due to banks Other Total 

Interest and other financial expense 368.636 238.823 607.459 
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The interest and other financial expense accounted in the P&L may be broke down as follow:   

- due to banks – Euro 368,636: this costs are connected to passive interests to pay to bank for contract of financing; 

- other – Euro 238,823: this debts represent the cost paid by STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A. for STERLITE 

TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED for bank garanties offered by the latter. 

Amount and nature of the individual revenue/expense items of exceptional magnitude or 
impact 

No revenues or other positive components derived from events of exceptional magnitude or impact were recognized during 

the current fiscal year.  

No costs derived from events of exceptional magnitude or impact were recognized during the current fiscal year.  

Income taxes for the fiscal year, current, deferred, and prepaid 

The company has set aside a provision for taxes for the year in accordance with current tax laws. Current taxes refer to taxes 

for the year as stated in the tax returns; taxes relating to previous years include direct taxes for previous years, inclusive of 

interest and penalties and also refer to the positive (or negative difference) between the amount due following the definition 

of a dispute or an assessment compared to the value of the provision set aside in previous years. Lastly, deferred and prepaid 

taxes concern positive or negative income components to be taxed or deducted, respectively, in different years to the one in 

which they were recorded for statutory accounting purposes.  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities 

This item includes the impact of deferred taxes on these financial statements. It can be traced back to the temporary 

differences between the value attributed to an asset or liability in accordance with statutory criteria and the corresponding 

value recognized for these elements for tax purposes.  

The company determined the deferred taxation exclusively for the IRES, as there were no temporary changes of IRAP. 

The information requested by art. 2427, n° 14 of the Italian Civil Code is shown below: 

- the description of the temporary differences that involved the recognition of the deferred and prepaid taxes, 

specifying the rate applied and the changes compared to the previous fiscal year, the amounts credited or debited to 

the income statement or to the shareholders' equity; 

- the amount of the prepaid taxes posted to the financial statements, pertaining to the losses for the fiscal year or for 

prior fiscal years and the reasons for the entering; the amount not yet posted and the reasons for the failure to post 

it; 

- the items excluded from the calculation and the related reasons. 

We point out that the company could account deferred tax asset on tax losses of the year and on non-deductible passive 

interests of the year. Following the trend of the fiscal year the company, with approval of the Board of the Statutory Auditor, 

has prudently decided to not account deferred tax asset as at December 31st, 2018.  

Explanatory notes, statement of cash flows 

The company prepared the statement of cash flows, which is the summary document linking the changes in the company’s 

balance sheet that occurred during the fiscal year with the changes in financial position; said statement shows the value of 

the financial resources that the company needed during the fiscal year and the uses of said resources. 

With regard to the method used, it is specified that, in accordance with the provision of OIC 10, the company utilized the 

indirect method, on the basis of which the cash flow is reconstructed by adjusting the fiscal year income/loss results of the 

non-monetary components.  
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Explanatory notes, other information 

The other information requested by the Italian Civil Code is shown below.  

Employment data 

The company did not have any existing employees during the fiscal year.  

Remunerations, advances, and credits granted to directors and statutory auditors, as well 
as commitments assumed on their behalf 

The following schedule shows the information requested by art. 2427, n° 16 of the Italian Civil Code.  

 Auditors 

Remunerations 5.000 

Remunerations to the official auditor or external auditors 

The following table shows the remunerations payable to the auditing firm, subdivided by the types of services provided.  

 Legal audit of annual accounts 
Total remuneration due to the legal 

auditor or audit firm 

Value 9.000 9.000 

Category of shares issued by the company 

The schedule below shows the number and nominal value of company’s shares, as well as any changes occurring during the 

fiscal year.  

 
Shares underwritten 

during the year, number 

Shares underwritten 
during the year, face 

value 
Final amount, number Final amount, face value 

Azioni ordinarie 5.050.000 5.050.000 5.050.000 5.050.000 

Total 5.050.000 5.050.000 5.050.000 5.050.000 

 

We point out that the company has issued a numer of 5,050,000 shares of a nominal value of Euro 1 as at December 31st, 

2018; the total shares has been subscribed by the sole shareholder STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED. 

Securities issued by the company 

The company did not issue securities.  

Details on other financial instruments issued by the company 

The company did not issue other financial instruments in accordance with article 2346, paragraph 6, of the Italian Civil 

Code.  
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Commitments, guarantees, and potential liabilities that do not appear in the balance sheet 

There are not any commitments, guarantees, or potential liabilities that do not appear in the balance sheet.  

Information on assets and financing intended for a specific business transaction 

Assets destined to a specific business 

It is certified that, at the date of closing of the financial statements, there are no assets dedicated to a specific business 

transaction as per n° 20 of art. 2427 of the Italian Civil Code.  

Financing destined to a specific business 

It is certified that, at the date of closing of the financial statements, there are no loans dedicated to a specific business 

transaction as per n° 21 of art. 2427 of the Italian Civil Code.  

Information on transactions with related parties 

Transactions with related parties were conducted during the fiscal year. These transactions were concluded at market 

conditions; therefore, in accordance with the legislation in effect, no additional information is provided.  

Information on agreements that do not appear in the balance sheet 

No agreements not entered on the Balance Sheet were undertaken during the fiscal year.  

Information on significant events that occurred after the fiscal year's end 

With regard to point 22-quater of art. 2427 of the Italian Civil Code, no significant events occurred after the fiscal year’s 

closing date that significantly impacted on the balance sheet, financial position, and income statement.  

Companies that prepare the financial statements of the broader/narrower group of 
companies of which the company is part as a subsidiary 

In accordance with art. 2427, numbers 22-quinquies and 22-sexies of the Italian Civil Code, the following schedule shows 

the name and registered office of the company that writes the consolidated financial statements of the larger or smaller group 

of companies to which the company belongs as a consolidated company. 

In addition, said schedule indicates where the copy of the consolidated financial statement is available. 

 

  

Information concerning the derivative financial instruments as per art. 2427-bis of the 
Italian Civil Code 

It is certified that no derivative financial instruments were subscribed.  

Name of the Company STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Country of residence INDIA

Address E1, MIDC Industrial Area, Waluj, Aurangabad, Maharashtra
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Summary of balance sheet of the company excercising management and coordination 
activities 

It is communicated that the company belongs to the group STERLITE and is subject to management and coordination activity 

by the company STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED. 

The following summary schedules provide the essential data of the latest approved financial statements of the above 

mentioned company that exercised management and coordination.  

Summary of balance sheet of the company excercising management and coordination activities (overview) 

  Mar '18 Mar '17 

  12 mths 12 mths 

Sources Of Funds   

Total Share Capital 80.20 79.66 

Equity Share Capital 80.20 79.66 

Reserves 989.79 791.51 

Networth 1,069.99 871.17 

Secured Loans 910.97 773.29 

Unsecured Loans 167.99 220.00 

Total Debt 1,078.96 993.29 

Total Liabilities 2,148.95 1,864.46 

 
Application Of Funds 

  

Gross Block 2,090.96 2,013.95 

Less: Accum. Depreciation 1,011.44 891.65 

Net Block 1,079.52 1,122.30 

Capital Work in Progress 234.72 27.03 

Investments 275.98 155.35 

Inventories 306.04 309.31 

Sundry Debtors 862.46 694.79 

Cash and Bank Balance 75.42 79.05 

Total Current Assets 1,243.92 1,083.15 

Loans and Advances 549.71 362.15 

Total CA, Loans & Advances 1,793.63 1,445.30 

Current Liabilities 1,183.11 848.87 

Provisions 51.79 36.65 

Total CL & Provisions 1,234.90 885.52 

Net Current Assets 558.73 559.78 

Total Assets 2,148.95 1,864.46 

 

Contingent Liabilities 
 

2,862.66 861.48 

Book Value (Rs) 26.68 21.87 

INCOME   

Revenue From Operations [Gross] 2,825.57 2,359.05 

Less: Excise/Sevice Tax/Other Levies 28.46 144.80 

Revenue From Operations [Net] 2,797.11 2,214.25 
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Other Operating Revenues 68.00 41.60 

Total Operating Revenues 2,865.11 2,255.85 

Other Income 22.19 10.90 

Total Revenue 2,887.30 2,266.75 

EXPENSES   

Cost Of Materials Consumed 1,131.10 1,006.09 

Purchase Of Stock-In Trade 32.99 40.68 

Changes In Inventories Of FG,WIP And Stock-In Trade 16.68 -102.27 

Employee Benefit Expenses 316.10 271.11 

Finance Costs 87.84 104.62 

Depreciation And Amortisation Expenses 170.14 145.17 

Other Expenses 765.21 619.08 

Total Expenses 2,520.06 2,084.48 

  
 

Profit/Loss Before Exceptional, ExtraOrdinary Items And Tax 367.24 182.27 

Profit/Loss Before Tax 367.24 182.27 

Tax Expenses-Continued Operations   

Current Tax 113.68 54.77 

Deferred Tax -1.12 -28.43 

Tax For Earlier Years 0.00 0.00 

Total Tax Expenses 112.56 26.34 

Profit/Loss After Tax And Before ExtraOrdinary Items 254.68 155.93 

Profit/Loss From Continuing Operations 254.68 155.93 

Profit/Loss For The Period 254.68 155.93 

 
   * Additional information: Public company 
 

   * Source: Dion Global Solutions Limited     

Proposed destination of profit or coverage of losses 

Dear Shareholders: in view of the discussion above, the administrative body proposes to carry forward the fiscal year’s loss 

of Euro 657,777.  

Explanatory notes, final part 

Dear Shareholders: we confirm that these financial statements, consisting of the balance sheet, income statement, statement 

of cash flows, and explanatory notes describe truthfully and accurately the balance sheet and financial position of the 

company, as well as the economic outcome for the fiscal year and that said financial statements correspond to the accounting 

records. Therefore, we ask you to approve the draft financial statements to 31/12/2018 together with the proposed destination 

of the fiscal year income/loss, as set forth by the administrative body.  

The financial statements are true and real and correspond to accounting records 

Milan, 03/05/2019  

The sole Director 
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Dear Shareholders,  

the Financial Statements for the business year which we are submitting for your approval faithfully reflects the position of 

the Company and closes with a loss of € 657,777 including, interest and other financial expense for Euro 607,459. 

The macroeconomic framework 

STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A., carries on the activity of investment’s mangement (Holding) in other companies 

working in the metallurgical sector and in the sector of the metallurgical manufacturing, production and/or trade. 

The global economy has continued to grow in recent months, but signs have emerged of a deterioration in cyclical 

conditions in many advanced and emerging economies. The prospects for world trade continued to weaken after the 

slowdown in the first part of last year. The uncertainties over economic conditions have had repercussions on the 

international financial markets, lowering long-term interest rates and share prices. The risk factors weighing on global 

economic prospects include the possible repercussions of a negative outcome to the trade negotiations between the United 

States and China, the worsening of financial tensions in the emerging economies and the arrangements for the United 

Kingdom's withdrawal from the European Union. 

In the Euro area, economic activity grew at a slower pace; in November industrial production fell sharply in Germany, 

France and Italy. Inflation decreased as a result of the deceleration in energy prices, though it was still firmly in positive 

territory. The ECB Governing Council confirmed its intention to maintain ample monetary stimulus for an extended period 

of time. 

In Italy, the available cyclical indicators point to a possible decline in economic activity in the last three months of the year 

after the interruption in growth in the third quarter. The decline in the summer months was partly attributable to the fall in 

domestic demand, especially investment, and to a slight reduction in household spending. The survey carried out by the 

Bank of Italy in collaboration with Il Sole 24 Ore points to a slowdown in investments planned by industrial and service 

firms owing to the uncertainty surrounding political and economic factors and trade tensions. 

Consumer price inflation fell to 1.2 per cent in December, largely on account of slower growth in energy prices. Core 

inflation remained weak, standing at 0.5 per cent. Firms revised downwards their inflation expectations. 

In addition to the global factors fuelling uncertainty, downside risks to growth also stem from the possibility of renewed 

increases in interest rates on government bonds, of a faster deterioration in private sector borrowing conditions and of a 

sharper drop in firms' propensity to invest. On the other hand, the growth rate might actually exceed this projected scenario 

if sovereign spreads diminish further. 
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Information on the company 

The Company  

STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A., installed on April 9th, 2018, carry on the activity of investment’s mangement 

(Holding) in other companies working in the metallurgical sector and in the sector of the metallurgical manufacturing, 

production and/or trade. This Financial Statements is the first Financial Statements of STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES 

S.P.A. 

The sole shareholder is STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED, resident in India, E1, MIDC Industrial Area, Waluj 

Aurangabad, Maharashtra; the sole shareholder carry on the activity of production and sale of telecomunication product, 

integrated optical fiber included and other telecomunication product, as optical fiber cables, telecomunication clables in 

copper, etc. 

We point out that during the fiscal year 2018, and exactly on July 20th, 2018, STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A. has 

acquired by COMPAGNIA BRESCIANA INVESTIMENTI S.P.A. (Brescia, Via Antonio Calligari 4, Chambre of 

Commerce of Brescia and Fiscal Code nr. 01341140174) the toal shares in METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A. 

(Dello (BS), Via G. Marconi 31, Commerce of Brescia and Fiscal Code nr.02132320173) becominf the sole shareholder of 

the latter. 

The sector 

STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A. held the 100% of METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A., company working in 

the metallurgical sector and in the sector of the metallurgical manufacturing. 

The acquisition of METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A. by the Group controlled by STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES 

LIMITED, one of the world leader company in the data networks and telecommunications sector, open new important 

opportunities in the Italian and European market for METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A. 

The positioning of the Company in the sector and its operations 

STERLITE TECHNOLOGY S.p.A. is controlled by STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED resident in India, E1, 

MIDC Industrial Area, Waluj Aurangabad, Maharashtra; the sole shareholder carry on the activity of production and sale 

of telecomunication product, integrated optical fiber included and other telecomunication product, as optical fiber cables, 

telecomunication clables in copper, etc. 

The STERLITE Group is one of the world leader company in the data networks and telecommunications sector. 

During the first few months of 2019, Telecom Italia's continued decline in demand for optical cables, due to political 

instability and the unclear situation regarding the future of the optical network and the possible merger with Openfiber. 

How ever the current position in Openfiber should allow us to consolidate the relationship for future activities.  

Several tenders are scheduled within the first half of the year. The Italian market welcomed that Metallurgica Bresciana 

has the possibility of making us more competitive and having a greater production capacity and better service. 

For the copper market We foreseen a stable situation for both our main market  railways and military. 

Management and coordination activity 

According to Article 2497-bis, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code we point out that STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES 

S.p.A. belongs to the group STERLITE and it is subject to management and coordination activity by the company 

STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED.  

The management and coordination activity has not produced effect on the activity of the Company of on his results. 

Significant event 

We point out that, on July 20th, 2018, STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.p.A. has totally acquired the shareholder equity of 

the METALLURGICA BRESCIA S.p.A. by COMPAGNIA BRESCIANA INVESTIMENTI S.p.A. 
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Assets and financial situation 

For a better understanding of the assets and financial situation, we represent here below the Balance Sheet reclassification 

charts:  

Assets 

Entry Fiscal Year 2018 % 

WORKING CAPITAL 1.064.428 2,22 % 

Quick ratio 78.756 0,16 % 

Cash and cash equivalents 78.756 0,16 % 

Deferred cash 985.672 2,06 % 

Due from shareholders   

Short-term receivables in current assets 985.672 2,06 % 

Short-term noncurrent receivables   

Financial assets   

Accrued income and prepaid expenses   

Inventories   

Fixed assets 46.866.534 97,78 % 

Intangible fixed assets   

Tangible fixed assets   

Financial fixed assets 46.866.534 97,78 % 

Medium/long-term receivables in current assets   

TOTAL USES 47.930.962 100,00 % 

 

Liabilities 

Entry Fiscal Year 2018 % 

MINORITY INTEREST SHARE CAPITAL 43.538.739 90,84 % 

Current liabilities 424.995 0,89 % 

Short-term payables 424.995 0,89 % 

Accrued liabilities and deferred income   

Consolidated liabilities 43.113.744 89,95 % 

Medium/long-term payables 43.113.744 89,95 % 

Reserves for contingencies and other charges   

TFR   

EQUITY 4.392.223 9,16 % 

Share capital 5.050.000 10,54 % 

Reserves   

Retained earnings (accumulated losses)   
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Entry Fiscal Year 2018 % 

Net profit (loss) for the year (657.777) (1,37) % 

TOTAL SOURCES 47.930.962 100,00 % 

 

Main indicators of the assets and financial situation 

Based on the previous Balance Sheet reclassification charts, we calculate the following Balance Sheet indicators: 

 

INDEX Fiscal Year 2018 

Fixed assets coverage  

= A) Shareholders' equity / B) Fixed assets 9,37 % 

The ratio is used to assess the balance between equity and company fixed 
investments 

 

Bank loans/working capital  

= D.4) Bank payables / C) Current assets 4.065,84 % 

The ratio measures the degree of the working capital coverage through the use of 
bank financing sources 

 

Leverage/Borrowing  

= [ TOT. LIABILITIES - A) Shareholders' equity ] / A) Shareholders' equity 9,91 

This expresses the ratio between the capital of minority interests and the total of own 
capital 

 

Debt long-term interest bearing/equity  

= [ D.1) Bonds and debenture loans + D.2) Convertible bonds and debenture bonds 
+ D.3) Payables due to shareholders for loans' + D.4) Payables due to banks + D.5) 
Payables due to other lenders + D.8) Secured payables + D.9) Payables due to 
subsidiaries + D.10) Payables due to associated companies + D.11) Payables due 
to parent companies ] / A) Shareholders' equity 

9,88 

The index measures the ratio between the resort to financing capital (third parties' 
capital obtained against payment and subject to restitution) and the resort to the 
company equity 

 

Equity/invested capital  

= A) Shareholders' equity / TOT. ASSETS 9,16 % 

The ratio measures the degree of company capitalization and consequently its 
financial independence from financing from third parties 

 

Financial expenses/turnover  

= C.17) Interests and other financial expenses (ordinary quote) / A.1) Revenue from 
sales and services (ordinary quote) 

 

This expresses the ratio between financial expenses and the company turnover  

Current assets/liabilities  

= [ A) Due from shareholders for outstanding payments + B.III.2) Receivables (within 
the next fiscal year) + C) Current assets - C.II) Receivables (after the next fiscal 
year) + D) Deferrals and accruals - Assets ] / [ D) Payables (within the next fiscal 
year) + E) Deferrals and accruals - Liabilities ] 

250,46 % 

The ratio measures the ability of the company to face current payables with current 
receivables intended in a broad sense (thus including the inventory) 

 

Fixed asset/equity capital margin  
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INDEX Fiscal Year 2018 

= [ A) Shareholders' equity - ( B) Fixed assets - B.III.2) Receivables (within the next 
fiscal year) ) ] 

(42.474.311,00) 

It is formed by the difference between Net Share Capital and net fixed assets. It 
expresses, in absolute value, the company's ability to cover investments in fixed 
assets with its own equity. 

 

Primary hedge ratio  

= [ A) Shareholders' equity ] / [ B) Fixed assets - B.III.2) Receivables (within the next 
fiscal year) ] 

0,09 

It is formed by the ratio between Net Share Capital and net fixed assets. It 
expresses, in absolute value, the portion of fixed assets covered by company equity. 

 

Fixed asset/equity capital and medium-long term debt margin  

= [ A) Shareholders' equity + B) Provisions for risks and charges + C) Post-
employment benefits + D) Payables (after the next fiscal year) ] - [ B) Fixed assets - 
B.III.2) Receivables (within the next fiscal year) ] 

639.433,00 

It is formed by the difference between Consolidated Capital (Net Share Capital plus 
long-term payables) and fixed assets. It expresses, in absolute value, the company's 
ability to cover investments in fixed assets with consolidated resources. 

 

Secondary hedge ratio  

= [ A) Shareholders' equity + B) Provisions for risks and charges + C) Post-
employment benefits + D) Payables (after the next fiscal year) ] / [ B) Fixed assets - 
B.III.2) Receivables (within the next fiscal year) ] 

1,01 

It is formed by the ratio between Consolidated Capital and net fixed assets. It 
expresses, in absolute value, the portion of fixed assets covered with consolidated 
resources. 

 

Net working capital  

= [ A) Due from shareholders for outstanding payments + B.III.2) Receivables (within 
the next fiscal year) + C.I) Inventory + C.II) Receivables (within the next fiscal year) 
+ C.III) Current financial assets + C.IV) Cash and cash equivalents + D) Deferrals 
and accruals - Assets ] - [ D) Payables (within the next fiscal year) + E) Deferrals 
and accruals - Liabilities ] 

639.433,00 

It is formed by the difference between gross working capital and current liabilities. It 
expresses, in absolute value, the company's ability to face short-term commitments 
with the available funds. 

 

Primary treasury ratio  

= [ A) Due from shareholders for outstanding payments + B.III.2) Receivables (within 
the next fiscal year) + C.II) Receivables (within the next fiscal year) + C.III) Current 
financial assets + C.IV) Cash and cash equivalents + D) Deferrals and accruals - 
Assets ] - [ D) Payables (within the next fiscal year) + E) Deferrals and accruals - 
Liabilities ] 

639.433,00 

It is formed by the difference, in absolute value, between cash and cash equivalents 
and current liabilities. It expresses the company's ability to face current obligations 
with its own cash. 

 

Primary treasury ratio  

= [ A) Receivables from shareholders for payments still due + C.II) Receivables 
collectable (within the next fiscal year) + C.III) Financial assets that do not represent 
fixed assets + C.IV) Cash and cash equivalents + D) Accruals and deferrals ] / [ D) 
Payables due (within the next fiscal year) + E) Accruals and deferrals ] 

250,46 % 

The ratio measures the ability of the company to face current payables with cash 
and cash equivalents represented by cash resources or short-term receivables 
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Economic situation 

For a better understanding of the economic situation, we represent here below the Profit & Loss account reclassification 

chart:  

Profit and loss account 

Entry Fiscal Year 2018 % 

Value of production 150.000 100,00 % 

- Consumption of raw materials   

- General expenses 200.318 133,55 % 

VALUE ADDED (50.318) (33,55) % 

- Other revenue 150.000 100,00 % 

- Employees costs   

- Provisions   

GROSS OPERATING PROFIT (200.318) (133,55) % 

- Depreciation and writedown   

OPERATING INCOME FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES (Net Operating 
Profit) 

(200.318) (133,55) % 

+ Other revenue and income 150.000 100,00 % 

- Other operating expenses   

INCOME BEFORE OPERATIONS (50.318) (33,55) % 

+ Financial income   

+ Gains and losses on foreign exchange   

OPERATING INCOME (Current Margin before financial expenses (50.318) (33,55) % 

+ Financial expenses (607.459) (404,97) % 

INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY OPERATIONS (Current Margin) (657.777) (438,52) % 

+ Value adjustments of financial assets   

+ Extraordinary income and expenses   

INCOME BEFORE TAXES (657.777) (438,52) % 

- Income taxes   

Net income (657.777) (438,52) % 

 

Main indicators of the financial situation 

Based on the previous Profit & Loss account reclassification chart, we calculate the following Profit & Loss indicators: 

 

INDEX Fiscal Year 2018 

R.O.E.  

= 23) Profit (loss) in the fiscal year / A) Shareholders' equity (14,98) % 

The ratio measures the profitability of the equity invested in the company  
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INDEX Fiscal Year 2018 

R.O.I.  

= [ A) Operating revenue  (ordinary quote) - A.5) Other revenue and income 
(ordinary quote) - B) Operating costs (ordinary quote) + B.14) Various operating 
costs (ordinary quote) ] / TOT. ASSETS 

(0,42) % 

The ratio measures the profitability and the efficiency of the invested capital 
compared to the operating income from ordinary activities 

 

R.O.S.  

= [ A) Operating revenue (ordinary quote) - B) Operating costs (ordinary quote) ] / 
A.1) Revenue from sales and services (ordinary quote) 

 

The ratio measures the company's income ability to generate profits from sales, i.e. 
the operating income realized for each return unit 

 

R.O.A.  

= [ A) Operating revenue (ordinary quote) - B) Operating costs (ordinary quote) ] / 
TOT. ASSETS 

(0,10) % 

The ratio measures the profitability of the invested capital with reference to EBIT  

Normalized EBIT.  

= [ A) Operating revenue (ordinary quote) - B) Operating costs (ordinary quote) + 
C.15) Income from equity investments (ordinary quote) + C.16) Other financial 
income (ordinary quote) + C.17a) Gains and losses on foreign exchange (ordinary 
quote) + D) Adjustments to the value of financial assets (ordinary quote) ] 

(50.318,00) 

It is the profit ratio that measures the fiscal year's result, without taking into account 
extraordinary components and financial expenses. It includes the result of ancillary 
activities and financial activities, net of financial expenses. 

 

Stated EBIT.  

= [ A) Operating revenue - B) Operating costs + C.15) Income from equity 
investments + C.16) Other financial income + C.17a) Gains and losses on foreign 
exchange + D) Adjustments to the value of financial assets + E) Extraordinary 
income and expenses ] 

(50.318,00) 

It is the profit ratio that measures the fiscal year's result, taking into account the 
result of ancillary activities, financial activities (except financial expenses) and 
extraordinary activities. 

 

 

Information as per art. 2428 C.C. 

Legally, the company is not involved in disputes that could give rise to hypothetical significant legal risks or other risks. 

It must be assumed that the financial assets of the Company have good credit quality; the financial assets recorded under 

current assets have been valued at fair value with an impact on the income statement of the results as of Decembre 31, 

2018. 

Main non-financial indicators 

Pursuant to the second paragraph of the art. 2428 of the Civil Code, we certify that, for the specific activity carried out and 

for a better understanding of the situation of the company, of the performance and of the operating result, the exposure of 

non-financial indicators is not considered relevant. 
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Information on the environment 

The Company has not carry on particular environment activities because them was not necessary. 

Information on personnel 

The company has not personnel. 

1) Research and development 

Pursuant to point 1) of the third paragraph of the art. 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, the Company has not carry on research 

and development activities during fiscal year 2018. 

2) Transactions with associated, subsidiary and parent companies 

With regard to the provisions of point 2) of the third paragraph of the art. 2428 of the Civil Code, it should be noted that 

the company holds equity investments as reported in the Explanatory Notes, to which reference should be made for further 

details. In particular, it should be noted that at the balance sheet date the existing relationships with the aforementioned 

companies can be summarized: 

Receivables from controlled companies entered in the Current Assets 

Description Fiscal Year 2018 

to parent companies 950.000 

Total 950.000 

 

Payables versus controlled companies entered in the Current Assets 

Description Fiscal Year 2018 

to parent companies 100.000 

Total 100.000 

 

3) Treasury shares 

In accordance with articles 2435bis and 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, it should be noted that the company did not possess 

treasury shares at the fiscal year’s closing date.  

4) Shares of the parent company 

In accordance with art. 2435-bis and art. 2428, paragraph 3, numbers 3 and 4 of the Italian Civil Code, it is specified that, 

during the fiscal year, the company did not hold shares or shareholdings in the parent company.  

5) Significant events occurring after the closure of the fiscal year 

After the closure of the fiscal year no significant events occurred such as to change the equity, economioc and financial 

situation of the Company resulting from the financial statements submitted for the approval by the Shareholders’ Meeting. 
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6) Business outlook 

In accordance with Article 2428, paragraph 3, point 6, of the Italian Civil Code, it is specified that, in line with the 

management politics of the previous years ed in prevision of the consolidation of the clients and of the acquisition of new 

markets, the investments and the developments keep going.     

6bis) Use of financial instruments significant for evaluating the assets and financial 
situation and result for the fiscal year 

In accordance with Article 2428, paragraph 3, point 6-bis), of the Italian Civil Code, it is specified that, during the fiscal 

year, the company did not hold use significant financial instruments for evaluating the assets and financial situation and 

result for the fiscal year. 

Conclusions 

We propose to the Shareholders' Meeting to approve the Financial Statements as of 31.12.2018, with the Notes to the 

Financial Statements and this Report, which presents a loss of Euro 657,777; the administrative body proposes to carry 

forward the fiscal year’s loss of Euro 657,777.  

 

Milan, 03/05/2019  

 

The sole Director 
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STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A.  
 

Registered office: VIA DEL VECCHIO POLITECNICO 9 MILANO (MI) 

Registered with the Registry of Companies of CCIAA DI MILANO MONZA BRIANZA LODI  
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VAT registration number: 10309460961  

Direzione e coordinamento: STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED  

 

 

Report on Management 
Consolidated financial statements as at 31/12/2018  

 

Dear Shareholders,  

the Consolidated financial statements have been drafted in accordance with the provisions of the Legislative Decree no. 

127/91, chapter III, implementing the VII CEE directive on the consolidated financial statements and refers to the financial 

year of our company closed on 31/12/2018. The Consolidated financial statements is made up of Balance Sheet (prepared 

according to Articles 2424 and 2424-Bis of the Italian Civil Code), P&L (prepared in accordance to Articles 2425 and 

2425 Bis of the Italian Civil Code), Cash Flow Statement and Explenatory Notes. 

The latter constitutes an integral part of the Financial Statements and has the function of providing illustration, analysis 

and in some cases completion of the balance sheet and P&L of the year and generally contains all the information required 

by Article 2427 of the Italian Civil Code. 

All the additional information is also highlighted, even if not required by specific regulatory provisions, but still 

considered necessary in order to provide a correct representation of the overall situation of the Group. 

We point out that during the fiscal year 2018, and exactly on July 20th, 2018, STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A. has 

acquired by COMPAGNIA BRESCIANA INVESTIMENTI S.P.A. (Brescia, Via Antonio Calligari 4, Chambre of 

Commerce of Brescia and Fiscal Code nr. 01341140174) the toal shares in METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A. 

(Dello (BS), Via G. Marconi 31, Commerce of Brescia and Fiscal Code nr.02132320173) becominf the sole shareholder of 

the latter. 

The consolidation area 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.p.A. includes, in addition to the 

financial statements of the parent company, the financial statements of all the companies in which the parent company 

holds, directly or indirectly, a quota/share of more than 50% of the Share Capital or a sufficient number of votes to 

exercise control or a dominant influence in the ordinary shareholders' meeting.  

The "full consolidation" method was adopted for these companies. 

Presentation criteria of the Financial Statements  

The Consolidated financial statements have been made up on the basis of the financial statements as at December 31th, 

2018 drafted by the BoD or, if already available, approved by the Shareholders' Meetings of the respective consolidated 

companies, adjusted, where necessary, in order to align them with the classification criteria and to the accounting 

principles of the group. 

In the case of companies acquired or established during the year, the respective income statements were assumed for their 

consolidation based on the period of group ownership. 

The accounting principles adopted for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are mainly those adopted by 

the parent company for the preparation of its stand-alone financial statements. 

The closing date of the consolidated financial statements corresponds to that of the financial statements of the parent 

company. 
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The Consolidation principles 

The Consolidation is carried out using the method of the “global integration”, according to Articles 31, 32 and 33 of 

Legislative Decree no. 127/91. 

The criteria adopted for the application of this method are the following: 

 the consolidating company STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.p.A. proceeded to calculate the consolidation 

differences, as the difference between the book value of the investment and the portion of the shareholders’ equity 

of the Company subject to consolidation at the acquisition date of July 20th, 2018; 

 the book value of the investments is delated against the related shareholders’ equity against the assumption of the 

assets and liabilities of the partecipationg companies; the difference is attributed to the asset and liability items, or 

to consolidation differences, if negative, to the consolidation reserve for the part attributable to the share of capital 

and reserves of shareholders / minority shareholders of the subsidiaries included in the consolidation, accounted 

to a special shareholders’ equity item; 

 the capital transactions for debts and credits and for costs and revenues, intercompany dividends and all the other 

transactions of relevant amount between the companies consolidated, including any intercompany profits not 

realized towards third parties, have been eliminated and then accounted the related deferred taxes if necessary; 

 significant profits and losses associated with the main transactions between the consolidated companies are 

delated; 

 value adjustments, possibly made in the financial statements of consolidated companies exclusively in application 

of tax laws, have been delated and then accounted the related deferred taxes if necessary; 

 any portion of minority interests in the consolidated economic result is shown in the separately P&L; 

 the portions of shareholders' equity of the third shareholders are accounted in a specific item in the balance sheet. 

The portion of the result related to third parties is shown separately in the P&L. 

 the criteria adopted for the conversion in Euro of the financial statements made up in a foreign currency are the 

following: balance sheet balances are converted at the exchange rates recorded on the last day of the year, the 

shareholders’ equity are converted at the historical exchange rates, the balances of the P&Ls are converted at the 

average exchange rates for the year. The differences arising from the conversion of balance sheet balances and 

P&Ls balances have been accounted in a specific shareholders' equity reserve so called "reserve da differenze di 

traduzione". 

The valutation criteria 

The criteria used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are those referring to the financial statements 

of the parent company that prepares the consolidated financial statements. 

The valuation of the items in the financial statements was carried out according to Article 35 of Legislative Decree 127/91 

as permitted by Articles 2423 and following of the Civil Code. For each item of the balance sheet and P&L have been 

indicated the related amount. 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the valuation criteria adopted are fully in line with and 

compliant with the provisions of Legislative Decree 139/15 which implemented Directive 2013/34. 

The macroeconomic context 

We point out that the Parent Company STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.p.A. carry on the activity of investment’s 

mangement (Holding) in other companies working in the metallurgical sector and in the sector of the metallurgical 

manufacturing, production and/or trade. 

The global economy has continued to grow in recent months, but signs have emerged of a deterioration in cyclical 

conditions in many advanced and emerging economies. The prospects for world trade continued to weaken after the 

slowdown in the first part of last year. The uncertainties over economic conditions have had repercussions on the 

international financial markets, lowering long-term interest rates and share prices. The risk factors weighing on global 

economic prospects include the possible repercussions of a negative outcome to the trade negotiations between the United 

States and China, the worsening of financial tensions in the emerging economies and the arrangements for the United 

Kingdom's withdrawal from the European Union. 

In the Euro area, economic activity grew at a slower pace; in November industrial production fell sharply in Germany, 

France and Italy. Inflation decreased as a result of the deceleration in energy prices, though it was still firmly in positive 
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territory. The ECB Governing Council confirmed its intention to maintain ample monetary stimulus for an extended period 

of time. 

In Italy, the available cyclical indicators point to a possible decline in economic activity in the last three months of the year 

after the interruption in growth in the third quarter. The decline in the summer months was partly attributable to the fall in 

domestic demand, especially investment, and to a slight reduction in household spending. The survey carried out by the 

Bank of Italy in collaboration with Il Sole 24 Ore points to a slowdown in investments planned by industrial and service 

firms owing to the uncertainty surrounding political and economic factors and trade tensions. 

Consumer price inflation fell to 1.2 per cent in December, largely on account of slower growth in energy prices. Core 

inflation remained weak, standing at 0.5 per cent. Firms revised downwards their inflation expectations. 

In addition to the global factors fuelling uncertainty, downside risks to growth also stem from the possibility of renewed 

increases in interest rates on government bonds, of a faster deterioration in private sector borrowing conditions and of a 

sharper drop in firms' propensity to invest. On the other hand, the growth rate might actually exceed this projected scenario 

if sovereign spreads diminish further. 

*** 

Outline of the Group and its activity 

STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.p.A., parent company and holding of the companies related to “STERLITE” (hereafter 

the “Group”) drafted the 2018 Consolidated Financial Statements. 

The Company totally consolidated in the Group is METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.p.A. (Dello (BS), Via G. Marconi 

31, Commerce of Brescia and Fiscal Code nr.02132320173). We point out that during the fiscal year 2018, and exactly on 

July 20th, 2018, STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A. has acquired by COMPAGNIA BRESCIANA INVESTIMENTI 

S.P.A. (Brescia, Via Antonio Calligari 4, Chambre of Commerce of Brescia and Fiscal Code nr. 01341140174) the toal 

shares in METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A. (Dello (BS), Via G. Marconi 31, Commerce of Brescia and Fiscal Code 

nr.02132320173) becominf the sole shareholder of the latter. 

The acquisition of METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A. has involved the acquisition of the share of “MB 

MAANSHAN SPECIAL CABLES CO. LTD”, indirected connected company and held through METALLURGICA 

BRESCIANA S.P.A. 

STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A., installed on April 9th, 2018, carry on the activity of investment’s mangement 

(Holding) in other companies working in the metallurgical sector and in the sector of the metallurgical manufacturing, 

production and/or trade. This Financial Statements is the first Financial Statements of STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES 

S.P.A. The 2018 Financial Statements is the first fiscal year of STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A. The sole shareholder 

is STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED resident in India, E1, MIDC Industrial Area, Waluj Aurangabad, Maharashtra. 

The sector of business 

STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.p.A., held the 100% of METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A., company working in 

the metallurgical sector and in the sector of the metallurgical manufacturing. 

STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LTD, world leader in the telecomunication sector, may open new important opportunity in 

Italy and Europe for METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A. 

Market position 

STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.p.A. is controlled by STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LTD.  

 

 

 

 

., carries on the activity of investment’s mangement (Holding) in other companies working in the metallurgical sector and 

in the sector of the metallurgical manufacturing, production and/or trade. 

The global economy has continued to grow in recent months, but signs have emerged of a deterioration in cyclical 

conditions in many advanced and emerging economies. The prospects for world trade continued to weaken after the 

slowdown in the first part of last year. The uncertainties over economic conditions have had repercussions on the 
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international financial markets, lowering long-term interest rates and share prices. The risk factors weighing on global 

economic prospects include the possible repercussions of a negative outcome to the trade negotiations between the United 

States and China, the worsening of financial tensions in the emerging economies and the arrangements for the United 

Kingdom's withdrawal from the European Union. 

In the Euro area, economic activity grew at a slower pace; in November industrial production fell sharply in Germany, 

France and Italy. Inflation decreased as a result of the deceleration in energy prices, though it was still firmly in positive 

territory. The ECB Governing Council confirmed its intention to maintain ample monetary stimulus for an extended period 

of time. 

In Italy, the available cyclical indicators point to a possible decline in economic activity in the last three months of the year 

after the interruption in growth in the third quarter. The decline in the summer months was partly attributable to the fall in 

domestic demand, especially investment, and to a slight reduction in household spending. The survey carried out by the 

Bank of Italy in collaboration with Il Sole 24 Ore points to a slowdown in investments planned by industrial and service 

firms owing to the uncertainty surrounding political and economic factors and trade tensions. 

Consumer price inflation fell to 1.2 per cent in December, largely on account of slower growth in energy prices. Core 

inflation remained weak, standing at 0.5 per cent. Firms revised downwards their inflation expectations. 

In addition to the global factors fuelling uncertainty, downside risks to growth also stem from the possibility of renewed 

increases in interest rates on government bonds, of a faster deterioration in private sector borrowing conditions and of a 

sharper drop in firms' propensity to invest. On the other hand, the growth rate might actually exceed this projected scenario 

if sovereign spreads diminish further. 

 

Information on the company 

The Company  

STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A., installed on April 9th, 2018, carry on the activity of investment’s mangement 

(Holding) in other companies working in the metallurgical sector and in the sector of the metallurgical manufacturing, 

production and/or trade. This Financial Statements is the first Financial Statements of STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES 

S.P.A. 

The sole shareholder is STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED, resident in India, E1, MIDC Industrial Area, Waluj 

Aurangabad, Maharashtra; the sole shareholder carry on the activity of production and sale of telecomunication product, 

integrated optical fiber included and other telecomunication product, as optical fiber cables, telecomunication clables in 

copper, etc. 

We point out that during the fiscal year 2018, and exactly on July 20th, 2018, STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A. has 

acquired by COMPAGNIA BRESCIANA INVESTIMENTI S.P.A. (Brescia, Via Antonio Calligari 4, Chambre of 

Commerce of Brescia and Fiscal Code nr. 01341140174) the toal shares in METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A. 

(Dello (BS), Via G. Marconi 31, Commerce of Brescia and Fiscal Code nr.02132320173) becominf the sole shareholder of 

the latter. 

The sector 

STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.P.A. held the 100% of METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A., company working in 

the metallurgical sector and in the sector of the metallurgical manufacturing. 

The acquisition of METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A. by the Group controlled by STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES 

LIMITED, one of the world leader company in the data networks and telecommunications sector, open new important 

opportunities in the Italian and European market for METALLURGICA BRESCIANA S.P.A. 

The positioning of the Company in the sector and its operations 

STERLITE TECHNOLOGY S.p.A. is controlled by STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED resident in India, E1, 

MIDC Industrial Area, Waluj Aurangabad, Maharashtra; the sole shareholder carry on the activity of production and sale 

of telecomunication product, integrated optical fiber included and other telecomunication product, as optical fiber cables, 

telecomunication clables in copper, etc. 
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The STERLITE Group is one of the world leader company in the data networks and telecommunications sector. 

During the first few months of 2019, Telecom Italia's continued decline in demand for optical cables, due to political 

instability and the unclear situation regarding the future of the optical network and the possible merger with Openfiber. 

How ever the current position in Openfiber should allow us to consolidate the relationship for future activities.  

Several tenders are scheduled within the first half of the year. The Italian market welcomed that Metallurgica Bresciana 

has the possibility of making us more competitive and having a greater production capacity and better service. 

For the copper market We foreseen a stable situation for both our main market  railways and military. 

Management and coordination activity 

According to Article 2497-bis, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code we point out that STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES 

S.p.A. belongs to the group STERLITE and it is subject to management and coordination activity by the company 

STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED.  

The management and coordination activity has not produced effect on the activity of the Company of on his results. 

Significant event 

We point out that, on July 20th, 2018, STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES S.p.A. has totally acquired the shareholder equity of 

the METALLURGICA BRESCIA S.p.A. by COMPAGNIA BRESCIANA INVESTIMENTI S.p.A. 

Other information on the consolidated companies 

Regarding to the intercompany transactions between the Parent Company and the consolidated company, subject to elision 

at the time of preparing the consolidated financial statements, these were mainly characterized, albeit in compliance with 

the respective managerial autonomy, by the exchange of financial disbursements that took place during use. of the 

resources available at the level of intragroup treasury, for the support and achievement of their respective social goals. 

Transactions with related parties were conducted during the fiscal year. These transactions were concluded at market 

conditions; the business conditions are properly indicated in the contracts.  

Comment to the Financial Statements items 

Regarding to the performance of the Group, we provide a detail of the final consolidated financial statements data. 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group closed with a loss of Euro 409,345. 

For a better understanding of the assets and financial situation, we represent here below the Balance Sheet reclassification 

charts:  

Assets 

Entry Fiscal Year 2018 % 

WORKING CAPITAL 42.426.757 56,66 % 

Quick ratio 649.927 0,87 % 

Cash and cash equivalents 649.927 0,87 % 

Deferred cash 28.674.851 38,30 % 

Due from shareholders 28.351.626 37,87 % 

Short-term receivables in current assets 18.311 0,02 % 

Short-term noncurrent receivables 304.914 0,41 % 

Financial assets 13.101.979 17,50 % 

Accrued income and prepaid expenses 32.446.938 43,34 % 
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Entry Fiscal Year 2018 % 

Inventories 11.349.739 15,16 % 

Fixed assets 19.052.291 25,45 % 

Intangible fixed assets 1.606.723 2,15 % 

Tangible fixed assets 438.185 0,59 % 

Financial fixed assets 74.873.695 100,00 % 

Medium/long-term receivables in current assets 42.426.757 56,66 % 

TOTAL USES 649.927 0,87 % 

 

Liabilities 

Entry Fiscal Year 2018 % 

MINORITY INTEREST SHARE CAPITAL 70.233.041 93,80 % 

Current liabilities 21.123.737 28,21 % 

Short-term payables 20.826.647 27,82 % 

Accrued liabilities and deferred income 297.090 0,40 % 

Consolidated liabilities 49.109.304 65,59 % 

Medium/long-term payables 45.487.077 60,75 % 

Reserves for contingencies and other charges 2.824.006 3,77 % 

TFR 798.221 1,07 % 

EQUITY 4.640.654 6,20 % 

Share capital 5.050.000 6,74 % 

Reserves (1)  

Retained earnings (accumulated losses) (409.345) (0,55) % 

Net profit (loss) for the year 74.873.695 100,00 % 

TOTAL SOURCES 70.233.041 93,80 % 

 

Main indicators of the assets and financial situation 

Based on the previous Balance Sheet reclassification charts, we calculate the following Balance Sheet indicators: 

 

INDEX Fiscal Year 2018 

Fixed assets coverage  

= A) Shareholders' equity / B) Fixed assets 14,49 % 

The ratio is used to assess the balance between equity and company fixed 
investments 

 

Bank loans/working capital  

= D.4) Bank payables / C) Current assets 127,94 % 

The ratio measures the degree of the working capital coverage through the use of 
bank financing sources 
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INDEX Fiscal Year 2018 

Leverage/Borrowing  

= [ TOT. LIABILITIES - A) Shareholders' equity ] / A) Shareholders' equity 15,13 

This expresses the ratio between the capital of minority interests and the total of own 
capital 

 

Debt long-term interest bearing/equity  

= [ D.1) Bonds and debenture loans + D.2) Convertible bonds and debenture bonds 
+ D.3) Payables due to shareholders for loans' + D.4) Payables due to banks + D.5) 
Payables due to other lenders + D.8) Secured payables + D.9) Payables due to 
subsidiaries + D.10) Payables due to associated companies + D.11) Payables due 
to parent companies ] / A) Shareholders' equity 

12,36 

The index measures the ratio between the resort to financing capital (third parties' 
capital obtained against payment and subject to restitution) and the resort to the 
company equity 

 

Equity/invested capital  

= A) Shareholders' equity / TOT. ASSETS 6,20 % 

The ratio measures the degree of company capitalization and consequently its 
financial independence from financing from third parties 

 

Financial expenses/turnover  

= C.17) Interests and other financial expenses (ordinary quote) / A.1) Revenue from 
sales and services (ordinary quote) 

3,05 % 

This expresses the ratio between financial expenses and the company turnover  

Current assets/liabilities  

= [ A) Due from shareholders for outstanding payments + B.III.2) Receivables (within 
the next fiscal year) + C) Current assets - C.II) Receivables (after the next fiscal 
year) + D) Deferrals and accruals - Assets ] / [ D) Payables (within the next fiscal 
year) + E) Deferrals and accruals - Liabilities ] 

200,85 % 

The ratio measures the ability of the company to face current payables with current 
receivables intended in a broad sense (thus including the inventory) 

 

Fixed asset/equity capital margin  

= [ A) Shareholders' equity - ( B) Fixed assets - B.III.2) Receivables (within the next 
fiscal year) ) ] 

(27.368.099,00) 

It is formed by the difference between Net Share Capital and net fixed assets. It 
expresses, in absolute value, the company's ability to cover investments in fixed 
assets with its own equity. 

 

Primary hedge ratio  

= [ A) Shareholders' equity ] / [ B) Fixed assets - B.III.2) Receivables (within the next 
fiscal year) ] 

0,14 

It is formed by the ratio between Net Share Capital and net fixed assets. It 
expresses, in absolute value, the portion of fixed assets covered by company equity. 

 

Fixed asset/equity capital and medium-long term debt margin  

= [ A) Shareholders' equity + B) Provisions for risks and charges + C) Post-
employment benefits + D) Payables (after the next fiscal year) ] - [ B) Fixed assets - 
B.III.2) Receivables (within the next fiscal year) ] 

21.741.205,00 

It is formed by the difference between Consolidated Capital (Net Share Capital plus 
long-term payables) and fixed assets. It expresses, in absolute value, the company's 
ability to cover investments in fixed assets with consolidated resources. 

 

Secondary hedge ratio  
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INDEX Fiscal Year 2018 

= [ A) Shareholders' equity + B) Provisions for risks and charges + C) Post-
employment benefits + D) Payables (after the next fiscal year) ] / [ B) Fixed assets - 
B.III.2) Receivables (within the next fiscal year) ] 

1,68 

It is formed by the ratio between Consolidated Capital and net fixed assets. It 
expresses, in absolute value, the portion of fixed assets covered with consolidated 
resources. 

 

Net working capital  

= [ A) Due from shareholders for outstanding payments + B.III.2) Receivables (within 
the next fiscal year) + C.I) Inventory + C.II) Receivables (within the next fiscal year) 
+ C.III) Current financial assets + C.IV) Cash and cash equivalents + D) Deferrals 
and accruals - Assets ] - [ D) Payables (within the next fiscal year) + E) Deferrals 
and accruals - Liabilities ] 

21.303.020,00 

It is formed by the difference between gross working capital and current liabilities. It 
expresses, in absolute value, the company's ability to face short-term commitments 
with the available funds. 

 

Primary treasury ratio  

= [ A) Due from shareholders for outstanding payments + B.III.2) Receivables (within 
the next fiscal year) + C.II) Receivables (within the next fiscal year) + C.III) Current 
financial assets + C.IV) Cash and cash equivalents + D) Deferrals and accruals - 
Assets ] - [ D) Payables (within the next fiscal year) + E) Deferrals and accruals - 
Liabilities ] 

8.201.041,00 

It is formed by the difference, in absolute value, between cash and cash equivalents 
and current liabilities. It expresses the company's ability to face current obligations 
with its own cash. 

 

Primary treasury ratio  

= [ A) Receivables from shareholders for payments still due + C.II) Receivables 
collectable (within the next fiscal year) + C.III) Financial assets that do not represent 
fixed assets + C.IV) Cash and cash equivalents + D) Accruals and deferrals ] / [ D) 
Payables due (within the next fiscal year) + E) Accruals and deferrals ] 

138,82 % 

The ratio measures the ability of the company to face current payables with cash 
and cash equivalents represented by cash resources or short-term receivables 

 

Economic situation 

For a better understanding of the economic situation, we represent here below the Profit & Loss account reclassification 

chart:  

Profit and loss account 

Entry Fiscal Year 2018 % 

Value of production 150.000 100,00 % 

- Consumption of raw materials   

- General expenses 200.318 133,55 % 

VALUE ADDED (50.318) (33,55) % 

- Other revenue 150.000 100,00 % 

- Employees costs   

- Provisions   
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Entry Fiscal Year 2018 % 

GROSS OPERATING PROFIT 19.920.218 100,00 % 

- Depreciation and writedown 12.278.963 61,64 % 

OPERATING INCOME FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES (Net Operating 
Profit) 

2.164.595 10,87 % 

+ Other revenue and income 5.476.660 27,49 % 

- Other operating expenses 123.507 0,62 % 

INCOME BEFORE OPERATIONS 2.776.123 13,94 % 

+ Financial income 526.855 2,64 % 

+ Gains and losses on foreign exchange 2.050.175 10,29 % 

OPERATING INCOME (Current Margin before financial expenses 1.292.348 6,49 % 

+ Financial expenses 757.827 3,80 % 

INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY OPERATIONS (Current Margin) 123.507 0,62 % 

+ Value adjustments of financial assets 406.397 2,04 % 

+ Extraordinary income and expenses 474.937 2,38 % 

INCOME BEFORE TAXES 628  

- Income taxes (15.015) (0,08) % 

Net income 460.550 2,31 % 

 

Main indicators of the financial situation 

Based on the previous Profit & Loss account reclassification chart, we calculate the following Profit & Loss indicators: 

 

INDEX Fiscal Year 2018 

R.O.E.  

= 23) Profit (loss) in the fiscal year / A) Shareholders' equity (8,82) % 

The ratio measures the profitability of the equity invested in the company  

R.O.I.  

= [ A) Operating revenue  (ordinary quote) - A.5) Other revenue and income 
(ordinary quote) - B) Operating costs (ordinary quote) + B.14) Various operating 
costs (ordinary quote) ] / TOT. ASSETS 

1,01 % 

The ratio measures the profitability and the efficiency of the invested capital 
compared to the operating income from ordinary activities 

 

R.O.S.  

= [ A) Operating revenue (ordinary quote) - B) Operating costs (ordinary quote) ] / 
A.1) Revenue from sales and services (ordinary quote) 

2,14 % 

The ratio measures the company's income ability to generate profits from sales, i.e. 
the operating income realized for each return unit 

 

R.O.A.  

= [ A) Operating revenue (ordinary quote) - B) Operating costs (ordinary quote) ] / 
TOT. ASSETS 

0,63 % 

The ratio measures the profitability of the invested capital with reference to EBIT  
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INDEX Fiscal Year 2018 

Normalized EBIT.  

= [ A) Operating revenue (ordinary quote) - B) Operating costs (ordinary quote) + 
C.15) Income from equity investments (ordinary quote) + C.16) Other financial 
income (ordinary quote) + C.17a) Gains and losses on foreign exchange (ordinary 
quote) + D) Adjustments to the value of financial assets (ordinary quote) ] 

460.550,00 

It is the profit ratio that measures the fiscal year's result, without taking into account 
extraordinary components and financial expenses. It includes the result of ancillary 
activities and financial activities, net of financial expenses. 

 

Stated EBIT.  

= [ A) Operating revenue - B) Operating costs + C.15) Income from equity 
investments + C.16) Other financial income + C.17a) Gains and losses on foreign 
exchange + D) Adjustments to the value of financial assets + E) Extraordinary 
income and expenses ] 

460.550,00 

It is the profit ratio that measures the fiscal year's result, taking into account the 
result of ancillary activities, financial activities (except financial expenses) and 
extraordinary activities. 

 

 

Information as per art. 2428 C.C. 

Legally, the company is not involved in disputes that could give rise to hypothetical significant legal risks or other risks. 

It must be assumed that the financial assets of the Company have good credit quality; the financial assets recorded under 

current assets have been valued at fair value with an impact on the income statement of the results as of Decembre 31, 

2018. 

Main non-financial indicators 

Pursuant to the second paragraph of the art. 2428 of the Civil Code, we certify that, for the specific activity carried out and 

for a better understanding of the situation of the company, of the performance and of the operating result, the exposure of 

non-financial indicators is not considered relevant. 

Information on the environment 

The Company has not carry on particular environment activities because them was not necessary. 

Information on personnel 

In order to better understand the situation of the company and the performance of the management, some informations 

regarding the management of personnel are provided. 

STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES SPA has not personnel. 

About METALLURGICA BRESCIANA SPA, we point out that in the 2018 financial year went from 130 employees (2 

manager; 10 middle managers; 28 office workers; 90 workers) at the beginning of the year, to the 125 work units (2 

managers;  9 middle managers;  27 office workers; 87 workers) at the end of the year , with a decrease of 3.84%. 

As in the previous years, the Integration Fund or other forms of social safety nets were not used. 

The average number of employees during the year was 123,5 employees, a decrease compared to 128.08 employees in the 

previous year, by 3.58%. 

The “pro-capite” value of revenues was approximately Euro 392,485.81 with an increase compared to the value of the 

previous year of Euro 378,817.49, of approximately 3.61%. 

No injuries occurred during the year. 
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Total hours worked decreased compared to the previous year and amounted to 209,497 hours. 

The Result Bonus for 2017 benefits, paid in  2018 calculated on the basis of the second level agreement renewed on June 

23, 2014, was disbursed for a total of Euro 191,511. 

Metallurgica Bresciana adheres to the contractual provisions of the Italian “CCNL Gomma-Plastica”. 

Research and development 

Pursuant to point 1) of the third paragraph of the art. 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, it was noted that the following 

research and development costs were incurred during the year, which were fully expensed during the year without having 

made the related capitalization: relative to personnel services and relative to contracts of research. 

According to the company policy of continuous improvement of products and processes, a considerable number of 

activities have been unbdertaken to enlarge the range of certified products both in the railway and fiber optic cables 

sectors. 

In order to satisfy (and when possible to prevent) the requests for new products and materials, a continuous activity of the 

market requests’ analysis has been carried out all over the year.  The aim of this activity is to guarantee customers 

compliance with the requirements. 

As far as the railway sector is concerned, we carried out all the mandatory activities to obtain the customers’ technical 

conformity related to the cables which have to be compliant with the requirements of the new technical specifications. In 

addition, the new CRCC certification has been achieved for on-board train cables in accordance with the requirements of 

the Chinese market, both for EN standards cables and for data transmission cables. 

In the field of fiber optic cables, homologation activities were carried out for some types of telecommunications cables in 

accordance with the specifications of customers which need new technical and construction requirements. 

Besides, cables for railway applications and fiber optic cables have been manufactured and certified, by third party bodies, 

in order to meet the requirements of the European Directive 305/2011 (CPR). For the manufacturing of these CPR cables 

new materials have been studied and tested in order to achieve the required fire behavior performances. In order to carry 

out all the tests at our laboratory, the relevant complete equipment was studied and implemented. 

Regarding the Quality System, both ISO and IRIS certifications have been obtained in accordance with the new revisions 

of these two Standards. 

Shares of the parent company 

In accordance with art. 2435-bis and art. 2428, paragraph 3, numbers 3 and 4 of the Italian Civil Code, it is specified that, 

during the fiscal year, the company did not hold shares or shareholdings in the parent company.  

Significant events occurring after the closure of the fiscal year 

After the closure of the fiscal year no significant events occurred such as to change the equity, economioc and financial 

situation of the Group. 

Business outlook 

Based on the investments made, the Group attends an increase of the revenues and its presence in new markets in the next 

year. 

Conclusions 

We believe to have illustrated, also by the way of the Financial Statements, the Explenatory Notes and the Statement of 

cash flows, a truly situation of the Group and its future business outlook.  

 

Milan, 03/05/2019  

 

The sole Director 



Metallurgica Bresciana S.p.A (Italy) 

Financial Statements as on December 31, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

STHI-Sterlite Tech Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of STHI-Sterlite Tech Holdings, Inc., which comprise the

balance sheets as of March 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of operations, changes in accumulated deficit,

and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019 and for the period from inception (May 2, 2017) to March 31, 2018,

and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,

and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits

in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the

auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant estimates

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position

of STHI-Sterlite Tech Holdings, Inc. as of March 31, 2019 and 2018, and the results of its operations and its cash flows

for the year ended March 31, 2019 and for the period from inception (May 2, 2017) to March 31, 2018,  in accordance

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Atlanta, Georgia

May 3, 2019

Aprio, LLP     Five Concourse Parkway, Suite 1000, Atlanta, Georgia 30328     404.892.9651                                  Aprio.com

Independently Owned and Operated Member of Morison KSi



STHI-STERLITE TECH HOLDINGS, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS

MARCH 31, 

ASSETS

2019 2018

Current assets

Cash $ 20,970 $ 404,970

Due from related party 2,369,663 845,000

Total current assets 2,390,633 1,249,970

Total assets $ 2,390,633 $ 1,249,970

LIABILITIES AND ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 7,500 $ 5,000

Accrued interest 52,499 7,661

Due to related party 2,407,661 1,250,000

Total current liabilities 2,467,660 1,262,661

Total liabilities 2,467,660 1,262,661

Accumulated deficit

Total accumulated deficit (77,027) (12,691)

Total liabilities and accumulated deficit $ 2,390,633 $ 1,249,970

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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STHI-STERLITE TECH HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 AND FOR THE PERIOD FROM INCEPTION

(MAY 2, 2017) TO MARCH 31, 2018

2019 2018

Net sales $ - $ 0

Operating expenses

Accounting fees 11,837 5,000

Bank service charges 0 30

Loss from operations (11,837) (5,030)

Other income (expense)

Interest expense (52,499) (7,661)

Total other expense (52,499) (7,661)

Provision for income taxes 0 0

Net loss $ (64,336) $ (12,691)

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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STHI-STERLITE TECH HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

  FOR THE  YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 AND FOR THE PERIOD FROM INCEPTION

(MAY 2, 2017) TO MARCH 31, 2018

Balance at May 2, 2017 $ 0

Net Loss (12,691)

Balance at March 31, 2018 (12,691)

Net Loss (64,336)

Balance at March 31, 2019 $ (77,027)

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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STHI-STERLITE TECH HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 AND FOR THE PERIOD FROM INCEPTION

(MAY 2, 2017) TO MARCH 31, 2018

2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss $ (64,336) $ (12,691)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used

by operating activities:

Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts payable 2,500 5,000

Accrued interest 52,499 7,661

Cash used by operating activities (9,337) (30)

Cash flows from investing activities

Loans to related party (1,524,663) (845,000)

Cash used by investing activities (1,524,663) (845,000)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from related party 1,150,000 1,250,000

Cash provided by financing activities 1,150,000 1,250,000

Net increase (decrease) in cash (384,000) 404,970

Cash, beginning of period 404,970 0

Cash, end of period $ 20,970 $ 404,970

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended March 31, 2019, the addition of interest to due to related party totaled $7,661. 

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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STHI-STERLITE TECH HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018

Note A

Business

Nature of Operations:

STHI-Sterlite Tech Holdings, Inc. (the "Corporation"), was formed on  May 2, 2017. The Corporation

sells optic fibers, telecommunication cables and power transmission conductors in North America

primarily to the power and telecom industries. 

Note B

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting:

The accompanying financial statements and related footnotes have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The financial statements have

been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, which reflects revenue when earned and expenses as

incurred.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and

the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ

from these estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk Arising From Cash Deposits in Excess of Insured Limits:

The Corporation maintains its cash in a financial institution insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation (FDIC). Deposit accounts, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Corporation

has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risks on

cash.
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STHI-STERLITE TECH HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018

Note B

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes:

The Corporation accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability approach. Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the

financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable

income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The

effect on the deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the

period that includes the enactment date. The Corporation records valuation allowances against deferred

tax assets as deemed necessary.

The Corporation accounts for the uncertainty in income taxes as prescribed by the minimum probability

threshold that a tax position must meet before a financial statement benefit is recognized. The minimum

threshold is defined as a tax position that is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by

the applicable taxing authority, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based

on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefit to be recognized is measured as the largest

amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. 

Note C

Common Stock

In May 2017, the board of directors of the Corporation authorized and directed that a certificate

representing 1,000 shares of common stock of the Corporation be issued to Sterlite Technologies Limited

and that such shares shall be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable shares of common stock of

the Corporation. The initial issuance of the Corporation's common stock shall be $0.0001 per share.

Note D

Related Party Transactions

Due from Affiliate:

As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Corporation loaned $2,369,663  and $845,000, respectively, to Sterlite

Technologies, Inc. There is no formal agreement associated with the loan.
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STHI-STERLITE TECH HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018

Note D

Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Due to Affiliate:

The Corporation entered into multiple revolving line of credit agreements with a related party, Sterlite

Tech Holdings, Inc. as of March 31, 2019. The maximum permitted in total on all lines may not exceed

$2,500,000. All loans are unsecured and incur interest at the 1-month LIBOR (at the time of issuance)

plus 0.85% or 1-month LIBOR plus 1.5% if the tenure is more than a year.

The first agreement entered in June 2017  provides for a principal amount of $200,000, accrues interest at

2.7% and the remaining principal balance together with any accrued interest is due on June 15, 2019.

The second agreement entered in September 2017 provides for a principal amount of $350,000, accrues

interest at 2.7% and the remaining principal balance together with any accrued interest is due on

September 19, 2019.

The third agreement entered in January 2018 provides for a principal amount of $350,000, accrues

interest at 2.9% and the remaining principal balance together with any accrued interest is due on

January 10, 2020.

The fourth agreement entered in March 2018 provides for a principal amount of $350,000, accrues

interest at 3.0% and the remaining principal balance together with any accrued interest is due on March

13, 2020.

The fifth agreement entered in June 2018 provides for a principal amount of $500,000, accrues interest at

2.8% and the remaining principal balance together with any accrued interest is due on July 23, 2019.

The sixth agreement entered in September 201, provides for a principal amount of $300,000, accrues

interest at 2.8% and the remaining principal balance together with any accrued interest is due on

September 28, 2019.

The seventh agreement entered in December 201, provides for a principal amount of $350,000, accrues

interest at 3.1% and the remaining principal balance together with any accrued interest is due on

December 24, 2019. 

As of March 31, 2019, the outstanding principal balance on the revolving line of credit agreements

including the capitalized unpaid interest as of March 31, 2018, totaled $2,407,661 which includes

capitalized interest of $7,661, and accrued interest on the line of credit agreements totaled $52,499.

As of March 31, 2018, the outstanding principal balance on the revolving line of credit agreements

totaled $1,250,000 and accrued interest on the line of credit agreements totaled $7,661.

-8-



STHI-STERLITE TECH HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018

Note E

Subsequent Events

The Corporation evaluated subsequent events through May 3, 2019, when these financial statements

were available to be issued. Management is not aware of any significant events that occurred

subsequent to the balance sheet date, but prior to the issuance of this report, that would have an

material impact on the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Sterlite Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sterlite Technologies, Inc., which comprise the balance

sheets as of March 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of operations, changes in accumulated deficit, and

cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019, and for the period from inception (May 2, 2017) to March 31, 2018, and

the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,

and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits

in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the

auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant estimates

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Aprio, LLP     Five Concourse Parkway, Suite 1000, Atlanta, Georgia 30328     404.892.9651                                  Aprio.com

Independently Owned and Operated Member of Morison KSi



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position

of Sterlite Technologies, Inc. as of March 31, 2019 and 2018, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the

year ended March 31, 2019, and for the period from inception (May 2, 2017) to March 31, 2018 in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Atlanta, Georgia

May 3, 2019



STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS

MARCH 31, 

ASSETS

2019 2018

Current assets

Cash $ 68,150 $ 43,031

Management fees receivable 1,969,422 0

Employee advances 16,975 54,037

Total current assets 2,054,547 97,068

Total assets $ 2,054,547 $ 97,068

LIABILITIES AND ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

2019 2018

Current liabilities

Accrued expenses $ 41,500 $ 15,997

Due to related party 2,369,663 845,000

Total current liabilities 2,411,163 860,997

Total liabilities 2,411,163 860,997

Accumulated deficit

Total accumulated deficit (356,616) (763,929)

Total liabilities and accumulated deficit $ 2,054,547 $ 97,068

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 AND FOR THE PERIOD FROM INCEPTION

(MAY 2, 2017) TO MARCH 31, 2018

2019 2018

Revenue

Management fees $ 1,969,422 $ 0

Total revenue 1,969,422 0

Operating expenses

Payroll 1,087,955 498,751

Contributions 0 100,000

Health insurance and medical reimbursements 99,134 28,259

Travel and lodging 122,350 98,740

Professional fees 157,683 20,344

Office expenses 34,371 10,432

Telephone expenses 6,596 3,502

Bank service charges 2,489 3,901

Testing charges 50,461 0

Miscellaneous 1,070 0

Total operating expenses 1,562,109 763,929

Income (loss) from operations 407,313 (763,929)

Provision for income taxes 0 0

Net income (loss) $ 407,313 $ (763,929)

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

   FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 AND FOR THE PERIOD FROM INCEPTION

(MAY 2, 2017) TO MARCH 31, 2018

Balance at May 2, 2017 $ 0

Net loss (763,929)

Balance at March 31, 2018 (763,929)

Net income 407,313

Balance at March 31, 2019 $ (356,616)

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 AND FOR THE PERIOD FROM INCEPTION

(MAY 2, 2017) TO MARCH 31, 2018

2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income (loss) $ 407,313 $ (763,929)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net

cash used by operating activities:

Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Management fees receivable (1,969,422) 0

Employee advances 37,062 (54,037)

Accrued expenses 25,503 15,997

Total adjustments (1,906,857) (38,040)

Cash used by operating activities (1,499,544) (801,969)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from due to related party 1,524,663 845,000

Cash provided by financing activities 1,524,663 845,000

Net increase in cash 25,119 43,031

Cash, beginning of the period 43,031 0

Cash, end of the period $ 68,150 $ 43,031

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018

Note A

Business

Nature of Operations:

Sterlite Technologies, Inc. (the "Corporation"), was formed on  May 2, 2017. The Corporation sells optic

fibers, telecommunication cables and power transmission conductors in North America primarily to the

power and telecom industries. 

Note B

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting:

The accompanying financial statements and related footnotes have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The financial statements have

been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, which reflects revenue when earned and expenses as

incurred.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and

the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ

from these estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk Arising From Cash Deposits in Excess of Insured Limits:

The Corporation maintains its cash in a financial institution insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation (FDIC). Deposit accounts, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Corporation

has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risks on

cash.
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STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018

Note B

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes:

The Corporation accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability approach. Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the

financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable

income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The

effect on the deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the

period that includes the enactment date. The Corporation records valuation allowances against deferred

tax assets as deemed necessary.

The Corporation accounts for the uncertainty in income taxes as prescribed by the minimum probability

threshold that a tax position must meet before a financial statement benefit is recognized. The minimum

threshold is defined as a tax position that is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by

the applicable taxing authority, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based

on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefit to be recognized is measured as the largest

amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. 

Note C

Common Stock

In May 2017, the board of directors of the Corporation authorized and directed that a certificate

representing 1,000 shares of common stock of the Corporation be issued to Sterlite Technologies Limited

and that such shares shall be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable shares of common stock of

the Corporation. The initial issuance of the Corporation's common stock shall be $0.0001 per share.

Note D

Operating Lease

The Corporation leases office space under a month-to-month operating lease agreement. The rent

expense for the year ended March 31, 2019, and for the period from inception May 2, 2017 to March 31,

2018, totaled approximately $27,000 and $5,000, respectively, and it is included under office expenses in

the accompanying statements of operations.
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STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018

Note E

Related Party Transactions

Due to Affiliate:

As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Corporation secured loan totaling $2,369,663 and $845,000,

respectively, from STHI-Sterlite Tech Holdings, Inc. There is no formal agreement associated with the

loan.

Management fee:

As of March 31, 2019, the Parent Company owed the Corporation a total of $1,969,422 relating to

management fees for services performed on behalf of Parent Company. These services included product

and market development. The Parent Company calculates the management fee payable to the Company

based on actual expenses plus a certain mark-up. The management fee is expected to be collected within

the current period.

Note F

Subsequent Events

The Corporation evaluated subsequent events through May 2, 2019, when these financial statements

were available to be issued. Management is not aware of any significant events that occurred

subsequent to the balance sheet date, but prior to the issuance of this report, that would have an

material impact on the financial statements.
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